
 

Page 1 of 394 

 

AGENDA 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
MONDAY, MARCH 04, 2019 

7:00 PM AT CITY HALL 

 

 
 
Call to Order by the Mayor 

Roll Call 

Approval of Minutes 

1. Regular meeting of February 18, 2019. 

Agenda Revisions 

Special Order of Business 

2. Public hearing on a proposal to undertake a public improvement project for the Ridgeway Avenue 
Reconstruction Project and to authorize acquisition of private property for said project. 
 
a) Receive and file proof of publication of notice of hearing. (Notice published February 8, 2019) 
 
b) Written communications filed with the City Clerk. 
 
c) Oral comments. 

3. Resolution approving a public improvement for the Ridgeway Avenue Reconstruction Project and 
authorizing acquisition of private property for said project. 

Old Business 

4. Pass Ordinance #2936, amending Chapter 29, Zoning, of the Code of Ordinances relative to the 
College Hill Neighborhood Overlay Zoning District, upon its second consideration. 

New Business 

Consent Calendar: (The following items will be acted upon by voice vote on a single motion without separate 
discussion, unless someone from the Council or public requests that a specific item be considered separately.) 

5. Approve the following recommendations of the Mayor relative to the appointment of members to 
Boards and Commissions: 
a) Mark Miller, Board of Adjustment, term ending 03/31/2024.  
b) Gerald Sorensen, Board of Adjustment, term ending 03/31/2024. 

6. Receive and file the Committee of the Whole minutes of February 18, 2019 relative to the following 
items: 
a) Board of Adjustment Interview - Mark Miller.  
b) Board of Adjustment Interview - Gerald Sorensen. 
c) Downtown Parking Study. 
d) Bills & Payroll. 

7. Receive and file Departmental Monthly Reports of January 2019. 

8. Approve a request for a street closure for the Panther Caravan on May 22, 2019. 

1



 

Page 2 of 394 

9. Approve and authorize execution of an Order Accepting Acknowledgment/Settlement Agreement 
with Suds relative to a first tobacco violation at 2223 1/2 College Street. 

10. Approve the following applications for beer permits and liquor licenses:  
a) Pheasant Ridge Golf Course, 3205 West 12th Street, Class B beer & outdoor service - renewal. 
b) Happy's Wine & Spirits, 5925 University Avenue, Class E liquor - renewal. 
c) Hillstreet News & Tobacco, 2217 College Street, Class E liquor - renewal. 

Resolution Calendar: (The following items will be acted upon by roll call vote on a single motion without 
separate discussion, unless someone from the Council or public requests that a specific item be considered 
separately.) 

11. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of Amendment #2 to the National Insurance 
Services Trust Joinder Agreement for Long Term Disability Insurance with National Insurance 
Services Trust.  

12. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a Subscription Renewal Agreement with 
Emergency Services Marketing Corp., Inc. relative to IamResponding callback software. 

13. Resolution approving and authorizing the expenditure of funds for the purchase and installation of 
cameras and lighting in the College Hill area. 

14. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a lease agreement with Black Hawk County Solid 
Waste Management Commission relative to the use of certain city-owned property located at 1500 
Bluff Street by the WasteTrac environmental education team. 

15. Resolution approving and authorizing the expenditure of funds for the purchase of a hydro/jet 
vacuum sewer cleaning apparatus. 

16. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of an Owner Purchase Agreement, and receiving 
and filing two Reports of Compensation Commissioners and Notices of Appraisement Damages and 
Time for Appeal, in conjunction with the West 1st Street Reconstruction Project. 

17. Resolution approving and accepting a Lien Notice and Special Promissory Note for property located 
at 821 Olive Street relative to the Rental to Single Family Owner Conversion Incentive Program.  

18. Resolution approving the preliminary plat of Greenhill Village Townhomes II. 

19. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of Supplemental Agreement No. 1 to the 
Professional Service Agreement for Grant Administration and Technical Services for Housing 
Projects with Iowa Northland Regional Council of Governments (INRCOG) relative to Community 
Development Block Grant (CDBG) Entitlement Funding. 

20. Resolution setting March 18, 2019 as the date of public hearing to consider adoption of the City's 
Code of Ordinances. 

21. Resolution setting March 18, 2019 as the date of public hearing on the proposed rezoning from A-1, 
Agricultural District, to RP, Planned Residence District, of property located at the southeast corner of 
West 12th Street and Union Road, and also on an associated amendment to the Schematic Land 
Use Map by changing the designation from Greenways & Floodplain to Greenways & Floodplain and 
Planned Development. 

22. Resolution setting March 18, 2019 as the date of public hearing to consider entering into a proposed 
Amended and Restated Agreement for Private Development with Buckeye Corrugated, Inc. 

23. Resolution setting March 18, 2019 as the date of public hearing to consider entering into a proposed 
Agreement for Private Development with Martin Realty Company II, L.L.C. and payment of certain 
economic development grants pursuant to said proposed Agreement. 

Allow Bills and Payroll 

2



 

Page 3 of 394 

24. Allow Bills and Payroll of March 4, 2019. 

City Council Referrals 

City Council Updates 

Public Forum. (Speakers will have one opportunity to speak for up to 5 minutes on topics germane to City 

business.) 

Adjournment 

  

3



CITY HALL 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, FEBRUARY 18, 2019 

REGULAR MEETING, CITY COUNCIL 
MAYOR JAMES P. BROWN PRESIDING 

  
The City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, met in Regular Session, 
pursuant to law, the rules of said Council and prior notice given each member 
thereof, in the City Hall at Cedar Falls, Iowa, at 7:00 P.M. on the above date. 
Members present: Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, Blanford, Darrah, Wieland, Green. 
Absent: None. 

 
52186 - It was moved by Kruse and seconded by deBuhr that the minutes of the Regular 

Meeting of February 4, 2019 be approved as presented and ordered of record. 
Motion carried unanimously. 

 
52187 -  Mayor Brown announced that this was the time and place for a hearing on a 

proposed resolution adopting and levying the final schedule of assessments for 
the 2018 Sidewalk Assessment Project, Zone 9. The Mayor then called for oral 
comments.  There being no one present wishing to speak about the proposed 
assessments, the Mayor declared the hearing closed and passed to the next 
order of business. 

 
52188 -  It was moved by Wieland and seconded by Miller that Resolution #21,424, 

adopting and levying the final schedule of assessments for the 2018 Sidewalk 
Assessment Project, Zone 9, be adopted. Following a comment by 
Councilmember Green, question by Councilmember Blanford and response by 
Community Development Director Sheetz, the Mayor put the question on the 
motion and upon call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. 
Aye: Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, Blanford, Darrah, Wieland, Green. Nay: None. Motion 
carried. The Mayor then declared Resolution #21,424 duly passed and adopted. 

 
52189 -  Mayor Brown announced that in accordance with the public notice of February 6, 

2019, this was the time and place for a public hearing on the proposed FY20 
Budget for the City of Cedar Falls. It was then moved by Darrah and seconded 
by Miller that the proof of publication of notice of hearing be received and placed 
on file. Motion carried unanimously. 

 
52190 - The Mayor then asked if there were any written communications filed to the 

proposed Budget. Upon being advised that there were no written 
communications on file, the Mayor then called for oral comments. Finance & 
Business Operations Director Rodenbeck commented briefly. There being no 
one else present wishing to speak about the proposed Budget, the Mayor 
declared the hearing closed and passed to the next order of business. 

 
52191 -  It was moved by Green and seconded by Wieland that Resolution #21,425, 

approving and adopting the FY20 Budget for the City of Cedar Falls, be adopted. 
Following questions by Councilmember Blanford, responses by Finance & 
Business Operations Director Rodenbeck and appreciative comments by 
Councilmember Darrah, the Mayor put the question on the motion and upon call 

4



 
 

 

- 2 - 

 

of the roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. Aye: Miller, deBuhr, 
Kruse, Blanford, Darrah, Wieland, Green. Nay: None. Motion carried. The Mayor 
then declared Resolution #21,425 duly passed and adopted. 

 
52192 -  Mayor Brown announced that in accordance with the public notice of February 1, 

2019, this was the time and place for a public hearing on a proposal to undertake 
a public improvement project for the Walnut Street Box Culvert Replacement - 
University Branch of Dry Run Creek Project and to authorize acquisition of 
private property for said project. It was then moved by Miller and seconded by 
Blanford that the proof of publication of notice of hearing be received and placed 
on file. Motion carried unanimously. 

 
52193 - The Mayor then asked if there were any written communications filed to the 

proposed public improvement and property acquisition. Upon being advised that 
there were no written communications on file, the Mayor then called for oral 
comments. There being no one present wishing to speak about the proposed 
public improvement and property acquisition, the Mayor declared the hearing 
closed and passed to the next order of business. 

 
52194 -  It was moved by Blanford and seconded by Green that Resolution #21,426, 

approving a public improvement for the Walnut Street Box Culvert Replacement - 
University Branch of Dry Run Creek Project and authorizing acquisition of private 
property for said project, be adopted. Following a request by Councilmember 
Wieland for a brief explanation of the project and response by Principal Engineer 
Schrage, the Mayor put the question on the motion and upon call of the roll, the 
following named Councilmembers voted. Aye: Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, Blanford, 
Darrah, Wieland, Green. Nay: None. Motion carried. The Mayor then declared 
Resolution #21,426 duly passed and adopted. 

 
52195 -  Mayor Brown announced that in accordance with the public notice of February 8, 

2019, this was the time and place for a public hearing on proposed amendments 
to Chapter 29, Zoning, of the Code of Ordinances relative to the College Hill 
Neighborhood Overlay Zoning District. It was then moved by Wieland and 
seconded by Darrah that the proof of publication of notice of hearing be received 
and placed on file. Motion carried unanimously. 

 
52196 - The Mayor then asked if there were any written communications filed to the 

proposed amendments. Upon being advised that there were two written 
communications on file, the Mayor then called for oral comments. Community 
Services Manager Howard provided a brief explanation.  

 
The following individuals spoke in opposition to the proposed amendments: 
 Jerry Geisler, 4412 South Hudson Road 
 Eashaan Vajpeyi, 3831 Convair Lane 
 
Following a question by Councilmember deBuhr and response by Jerry Geisler, 
4412 South Hudson Road, Councilmembers voted unanimously to allow 
extended discussion with Jerry Geisler, 4412 South Hudson Road. 
 

5



 
 

 

- 3 - 

 

The following individuals spoke in support of the proposed amendments: 
 Kathryn Sogard, College Hill Partnership Executive Director 
 Chris Martin, 421 West Seerley Boulevard 
 Dave Deibler, 1616 Campus Street 
 Becky Hawbaker, 2309 Iowa Street 
 Kyle Dehmlow, 2113 Vera Way 
 
Northern Iowa Student Liaison Jacob Madden spoke in support of policies that 
would improve parking in the College Hill area. 

 
 There being no one else present wishing to speak about the proposed 

amendments, the Mayor declared the hearing closed and passed to the next 
order of business. 

 
52197 -  It was moved by Green and seconded by Wieland that Ordinance #2936, 

amending Chapter 29, Zoning, of the Code of Ordinances relative to the College 
Hill Neighborhood Overlay Zoning District, be passed upon its first consideration. 
Following questions and comments by Councilmembers Blanford, deBuhr, 
Wieland and Green, and responses by Community Services Manager Howard 
and City Administrator Gaines, the City Council voted unanimously to allow WGI 
parking study consultant Andy Miller to respond to questions by Councilmembers 
Kruse and Blanford. 

 
    It was then moved by Kruse and seconded by deBuhr to table consideration of 

the ordinance until completion of the college hill parking study. Following 
comments by Councilmember Darrah, the motion to table failed 2-5, with Miller, 
Blanford, Darrah, Wieland and Green voting nay. 

 
    It was then moved by deBuhr and seconded by Kruse to amend the parking ratio 

in the ordinance from 1 to 1.5 stalls for one bedroom and studio units. Following 
questions and comments by Councilmembers Kruse, Blanford, Miller, Green and 
Darrah and responses by Community Services Manager Howard, the motion to 
amend failed 2-5, with Miller, Blanford, Darrah, Wieland and Green voting nay. 

 
    It was then moved by Miller and seconded by Green to amend the parking ratio 

of one stall for one bedroom and studio units to apply to C-3 zoning only. 
Following questions and comments by Councilmembers Wieland, Kruse, 
Blanford, deBuhr and Green, and responses by Community Services Manager 
Howard, the motion to amend failed 2-5, with deBuhr, Kruse, Darrah, Wieland 
and Green voting nay. 

 
    The Mayor then put the question on the original motion and upon call of the roll, 

the following named Councilmembers voted. Aye: Miller, Blanford, Darrah, 
Wieland, Green. Nay: deBuhr and Kruse. Motion carried. 

 
52198 - It was moved by Darrah and seconded by Blanford that the following items and 

recommendations on the Consent Calendar be received, filed and approved: 
 

Receive and file the following resignations:  

6



 
 

 

- 4 - 

 

a) Karen Morlan, Housing Commission.  
b) Todd Blanford, Human Rights Commission. 
 
Receive and file the Committee of the Whole minutes of February 4, 2019 
relative to the following items:  
a) FY20 Budget.  
b) Bills & Payroll. 
 
Receive and file the City Council Work Session minutes of February 4, 2019. 
 
Approve the application of Buzz-Smoke & Vapor, 2125 College Street, for a 
cigarette/tobacco/nicotine/vapor permit. 

 
 Approve the following applications for beer permits and liquor licenses:  

 a) Asian Fusion Vietnamese and Thai Cuisine, 5725 University Avenue, Special 
Class C liquor - renewal.  

 b) College Square Cinema, 6301 University Avenue, Special Class C liquor - 
renewal.  

 c) Chad's Pizza and Restaurant, 909 West 23rd Street, Class C liquor & outdoor 
service - renewal.  

 d) Sakura Japanese Steakhouse & Sushi Bar, 5719 University Avenue, Class C 
liquor - renewal.  

 e) The Hydrant Firehouse Grill, 2002 College Street, Class C liquor - renewal.  
  f) Thunder Ridge Ampride, 2425 Whitetail Drive, Class E liquor - renewal.  

 g) Kwik Star, 2019 College Street, Class C beer & Class B wine - change in 
ownership.  

 h) Kwik Star, 7500 Nordic Drive, Class C beer & Class B wine - change in 
ownership.  

  i) Tobacco Outlet Plus, 4116 University Avenue, Class C beer - change in 
ownership. 

 
 Motion carried unanimously. 
 
52199 -  It was moved by Miller and seconded by Green that the following resolutions be 

introduced and adopted: 
 

Resolution #21,427, approving and authorizing execution of a Form of Contract 
with Miller Fence & Flag Co. for a security fence and gates for the Public Safety 
Facility. 
 
Resolution #21,428, approving and authorizing execution of an Asphalt Crushing 
Services Informal Project Contract with Peterson Contractors, Inc. 
 
Resolution #21,429, approving and authorizing execution of a Professional 
Service Agreement with Snyder & Associates, Inc. relative to the Oak Park 
Boulevard Sewer Replacement Project. 
 
Resolution #21,430, approving and accepting the contract and bond of Peters 
Construction Corporation for the Place to Play Playground Project. 

7



 
 

 

- 5 - 

 

 
Resolution #21,431, approving and accepting the contract and bond of Peterson 
Contractors, Inc. for the 2019 Street Construction Project. 
 
Resolution #21,432, approving and authorizing execution of Supplemental 
Agreement No. 3 with Snyder & Associates, Inc. relative to 2019 Engineering 
Services. 
 
Resolution #21,433, approving and authorizing execution of one Owner 
Purchase Agreement and two Tenant Purchase Agreements, and approving and 
accepting one Public Utility Easement and one Owner's Temporary Easement for 
Construction, in conjunction with the West 1st Street Reconstruction Project. 
 
Resolution #21,434, approving and authorizing submission of the Iowa Certified 
Local Government (CLG) 2018 Annual Report of the Historic Preservation 
Commission to the State Historical Society of Iowa. 
 
Resolution #21,435, approving and authorizing execution of a Professional 
Service Agreement with Community ReCode, LLC relative to the Downtown 
Visioning & Zoning Code Update Project. 
 
Following due consideration by the Council, the Mayor put the question on the 
motion and upon call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. 
Aye: Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, Blanford, Darrah, Wieland, Green. Nay: None. Motion 
carried. The Mayor then declared Resolutions #21,427 through #21,435 duly 
passed and adopted. 

 
52200 -   It was moved by Miller and seconded by Darrah that Resolution #21,436, 

approving and authorizing execution of a Second Amendment to Lease with 
Sartori Memorial Hospital, Inc. and Wheaton Franciscan Healthcare-Iowa, Inc., 
formerly known as Covenant Health System, Inc., allowing a name change from 
Sartori Memorial Hospital to MercyOne Cedar Falls Medical Center, be adopted. 
Following comments by Councilmember Green, Rosemary Beach, 5018 Sage 
Road, Roger White, 2303 Greenwood Avenue, Jack Dusenbery, President of 
Sartori Hospital (MercyOne) and Dave Deaver, 2441 Hawthorne Drive, the Mayor 
put the question on the motion and upon call of the roll, the following named 
Councilmembers voted. Aye: Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, Blanford, Darrah, Wieland, 
Green. Nay: None. Motion carried. The Mayor then declared Resolution #21,436 
duly passed and adopted. 

 
52201 -     It was moved by Miller and seconded by Kruse that Resolution #21,437, 

approving and authorizing a Joint Project Agreement with the City of Waterloo 
relative to reconstruction of the University Avenue & Midway Drive intersection, 
be adopted. Following questions by Councilmember deBuhr and responses by 
Community Development Director Sheetz, the Mayor put the question on the 
motion and upon call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. 
Aye: Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, Blanford, Darrah, Wieland, Green. Nay: None. Motion 
carried. The Mayor then declared Resolution #21,437 duly passed and adopted. 

 

8



 
 

 

- 6 - 

 

52202 -     It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Green that the bills and payroll of 
February 18, 2019 be allowed as presented, and that the Controller/City 
Treasurer be authorized to issue City checks in the proper amounts and on the 
proper funds in payment of the same. Upon call of the roll, the following named 
Councilmembers voted. Aye: Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, Blanford, Darrah, Wieland, 
Green. Nay: None. Motion carried.  

 
52203 -  Councilmember Darrah expressed appreciation for the snow removal efforts of 

the Public Works staff. 
   
     Public Works and Parks Manager Heath provided a brief explanation of snow 

removal procedures, responded to questions by Councilmembers Kruse and 
Wieland, and also recognized his staff for their snow removal efforts. 

 
     Mayor Brown announced the Black Hawk County Gaming Commission’s 

approval of grant funding for Phase I of the Streetscape project. 
 
52204 -  Jeff Johnson, 923 West 1st Street, expressed concerns with Department of 

Transportation plowing practices and future impacts on his property. 
 
     Penny Popp, 4805 South Main Street, commented on the number of firefighters 

resigning and requested a five-year plan for the Public Safety Officer program. 
 
     Eashaan Vajpeyi, 3831 Convair Lane, commented about action taken on the 

ordinance affecting the College Hill Neighborhood Overlay Zoning District.  
 
52205 - It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Darrah that the meeting be adjourned 

at 9:13 P.M.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
 
  _______________________________ 
  Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 

 

9



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
 
 

 

 

 
 TO: Honorable Mayor James P. Brown and City Council 
 
 FROM: Terra Ray, Engineer Technician II 
 
 DATE: February 26, 2019 
 
 SUBJECT: Ridgeway Avenue Reconstruction 
  Project Number BR-106-3172 
 
 
The City of Cedar Falls is planning to reconstruct a portion of Ridgeway Avenue 
Chancellor Drive to Hwy 58. The project will require the acquisition of right of way and 
temporary easements along the corridor. Plans for the project shows the need for 
acquisitions from approximately four (4) properties. 
 
Iowa law requires that the City Council hold a public hearing to authorize proceeding 
with the project, including the purchase of right of way.  The public hearing offers an 
opportunity for the public, especially those from whom the easements will be purchased, 
to comment on the project. 
 
We recommend that the Council hold a Public Hearing for March 4, 2019, to be held at 
the regularly scheduled City Council meeting. 
 
xc: Chase Schrage, Principal Engineer 

10



NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING ON A PROPOSAL TO UNDERTAKE A PUBLIC 
IMPROVEMENT PROJECT FOR THE RIDGEWAY AVENUE RECONSTRUCTION PROJECT 

AND TO AUTHORIZE ACQUISITION OF PRIVATE PROPERTY FOR SAID PROJECT 
 
 
To Whom It May Concern: 
 
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that on the 4th day of March, 2019, at 7:00 o’clock p.m. in the 
Council Chambers of the City Hall of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, 
Iowa, a Public Hearing will be held by the City Council of said City on the proposal to undertake 
a public improvement project for the Ridgeway Avenue Reconstruction Project and to authorize 
acquisition of private property for the project. 
 
Written objections to the proposal may be filed with City Clerk on or before the date of hearing, 
and all objections will be heard at the time of said hearing. 
 
This notice is given by order of the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, on the 4th   
day of February, 2019. 
 
 
Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 
City of Cedar Falls, Iowa 
 

11



SHEET NO.REVISION DESCRIPTIONBYDATENO

CAD FILE:

CAD DATE:

PROJECT DATE:

PROJECT NO:

c:\pw_workdir\pw_ie\ttl\d0306870\30 Percent Displays_6B.dgn

1/25/2019 2:13:18 PM

DESIGNED BY:

CHECKED BY:

DRAWN BY:

RIDGEWAY AVENUE IMPROVEMENTS - PHASE 1

CHANCELLOR DRIVE TO IA HWY 58

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS

0

FEET

50

N

RIDGEWAY AVE

N
O

R
D
IC
 D

R
IV

E

OPTION 6B

PROJECT OVERVIEW 12



 1 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Prepared by: Karen Howard, P&CS Manager, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 (319) 273-8600 

 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 2936 
 

AN ORDINANCE REPEALING AND REPLACING SECTION 29-160, CHN, 
COLLEGE HILL NEIGHBORHOOD OVERLAY ZONING DISTRICT, OF DIVISION 
2, SPECIFIC DISTRICTS, OF ARTICLE III, DISTRICTS AND DISTRICT 
REGULATIONS, OF CHAPTER 29, ZONING OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF 
THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA (Case # TA19-001) 

 
WHEREAS, it is the purpose of the College Hill Neighborhood Overlay Zoning District to 

regulate development and land uses within the College Hill Neighborhood and to provide 
guidance for building and site design standards, maintenance and development of the residential 
and business districts in a manner that complements the University of Northern Iowa campus, 
promotes community vitality and safety, and strengthens commercial enterprise; and 

 
WHEREAS, these amendments add a definition of “mixed-use building” and establish 

standards for said mixed-use buildings, including parking requirements and building design 
standards to encourage new development and revitalization of the College Hill business district 
and areas immediately adjacent to the University of Northern Iowa campus; and 

 
WHEREAS, these amendments delete ambiguous language from the College Hill Overlay 

Zoning District standards that have created uncertainty in the market and in the community 
regarding parking requirements for upper floor residential dwelling units within mixed-use buildings;  

 
WHEREAS, these amendments provide consistency between the parking requirements for 

mixed-use buildings in the C-3 (College Hill Business District) and multiple dwelling buildings in the 
R-3 and R-4 Zoning Districts located within the College Hill Overlay District;  

 
WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Commission has reviewed the proposed changes to the 

ordinance and recommends approval; and now, therefore:  
 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA: 
 

13



 2 

 
A. Section 29-160, CHN, College Hill Neighborhood Overlay Zoning District, of Division 2, Specific 
Districts, of Article III, Districts and District Regulations, of Chapter 29, Zoning is hereby repealed 
in its entirety and the following Section 29-160, is enacted in lieu thereof, as follows: 
 
Sec. 29-160. - CHN, College Hill Neighborhood overlay zoning district.  

General Regulations  

(a) Boundaries. The College Hill Neighborhood zoning district (CHN District) boundaries are shown in the 
College Hill Neighborhood Master Plan and legally described in Attachment A. (Said attachment is not 
set out at length herein but is on file in the office of the city planner.)  

(b) Purpose and intent: The purpose of the College Hill Neighborhood overlay zoning district is to regulate 
development and land uses within the College Hill Neighborhood and to provide guidance for building 
and site design standards, maintenance and development of the residential and business districts in a 
manner that complements the University of Northern Iowa campus, promotes community vitality and 
safety and strengthens commercial enterprise. New structures, including certain types of fences, certain 
modifications to existing structures and certain site improvements and site maintenance shall conform 
to this section.  

The provisions of this section shall apply in addition to any other zoning district regulations 

and requirements in which the land may be classified. In the case of conflict, the most restrictive 

provisions shall govern unless otherwise expressly provided in this section.  

(c) Definitions.  

(1) Bedroom: A room unit intended for sleeping purposes containing at least 70 square feet of floor 
space for each occupant. Neither closets nor any part of a room where the ceiling height is less 
than five feet shall be considered when computing floor area.  

(2)  Change in use: Change in use shall include residential uses changed from single-unit to two-unit or 
two-unit to multi-unit or to any increase in residential intensity within a structure (i.e. change from 
duplex to fraternity house). The term shall also apply to changes in use classifications (i.e. 
residential to commercial).  

(3) Fraternity/sorority: Residential facilities provided for college students and sponsored by university 
affiliated student associations. Such facilities may contain individual or common sleeping areas 
and bathroom facilities but shall provide common kitchen, dining, and lounging areas. Such 
facilities may contain more than one unit.  

(4) Greenway: Open landscaped area maintained for floodplain protection, stormwater management 
and public access. Such area may contain pedestrian walkways or bicycle pathways but is not 
intended for regular or seasonal usage by motorized recreational vehicles.  

(5) Landscaped area: An area not subject to vehicular traffic, which consists of living landscape 
material including grass, trees and shrubbery.  

(6) Lot split, property transfer: Not a subdivision plat where a new lot is being created; includes any 
transfer of small segments of property or premises between two abutting properties, whether 
commonly owned or owned by separate parties, where one property (the "sending property") is 
dedicating or deeding additional land to another abutting property (the "receiving property."[)]  

14



 3 

(7)  Mixed-Use Building: A building designed for occupancy by a minimum of two different uses. Uses 
generating visitor or customer traffic (such as retail, restaurants, personal services) are typically 
located on the ground floor facing the street, whereas uses generating limited pedestrian activity 
(such as office or residential uses) are typically located on upper floors or behind street-fronting 
commercial uses.  

(8) Neighborhood character: The College Hill Neighborhood area is one of Cedar Falls' oldest and 
most densely populated neighborhoods. As the University of Northern Iowa has grown the original 
single-unit residential neighborhood surrounding the campus area has been transformed into a 
mixture of single-unit, duplex and multiple unit dwelling units along with a few institutional uses and 
other university-related uses such as fraternities and sorority houses. These various uses are 
contained in a variety of underlying zoning districts (i.e. R-2, R-3, R-4, Residential and C-3, 
commercial districts). Architectural styles vary significantly among existing building structures while 
differing land uses and building types are permitted in different zoning districts. When references 
are made in this ordinance to preservation of neighborhood character, uniformity of building scale, 
size, bulk and unusual or widely varying appearance are of primary concern regardless of the 
nature of the proposed building use.  

New construction, including significant improvements to existing structures, shall be of a character 
that respects and complements existing neighborhood development. The following variables or 
criteria shall be used in determining whether a newly proposed construction or building renovation 
is in keeping with the character of the neighborhood:  

a. Overall bulk/size of the building;  

b. Overall height of the building;  

c. Number of proposed dwelling units in comparison to surrounding properties;  

d. Lot density (lot area divided by number of dwelling units);  

e. Off-street parking provision;  

f. Architectural compatibility with surrounding buildings.  

(9) Parking area: That portion of a parcel of land that is improved and designated or commonly used 
for the parking of one or more motor vehicles.  

(10) Parking lot: That area improved and designated or commonly used for the parking of three or more 
vehicles.  

(11) Parking space, also parking stall: An area measuring at least nine feet wide and 19 feet long for all 
commercial, institutional or manufacturing uses or eight feet wide and 18 feet long for residential 
uses only, connected to a public street or alley by a driveway not less than ten feet wide, and so 
arranged as to permit ingress and egress of motor vehicles without moving any other vehicle 
parked adjacent to the parking space.  

(12) Premises: A lot, plot or parcel of land including all structures thereon. 

(13)Residential Building:  Any building that is designed and/or used exclusively for residential purposes, 
but not including a tent, cabin or travel trailer.  

(14) Residential conversion: The alteration or modification of a residential structure that will result in an 
increase in the number of rooming units or dwelling units within the residential structure. The 
addition or creation of additional rooms within an existing rooming unit or dwelling unit does not 
constitute a residential conversion.  

15



 4 

(15) Structural alteration: Any alteration, exterior or interior that alters the exterior dimension of the 
structure. This provision shall apply to residential, commercial and institutional uses including 
churches or religious institutions.  

(16) Substantial improvement: Any new construction within the district or any renovation of an existing 
structure, including the following:  

a. Any increase in floor area or increased external dimension of a residential or commercial 
structure. Additional bedrooms proposed in an existing duplex or multi-unit residence shall be 
considered a substantial improvement. Bedroom additions to single-unit residences shall not 
be considered to be a substantial improvement.  

b. Any modification of the exterior appearance of the structure by virtue of adding or removing 
exterior windows or doors. Repair or replacement of existing windows or doors which does not 
result in any change in the size, number or location of said windows and doors shall not be 
considered to be a substantial improvement.  

c. Any structural alteration that increases the number of bedrooms or dwelling units. Interior room 
additions, including bedroom additions, may be made to single-unit residential structures 
without requiring additional on-site parking.  

d. All facade improvements, changes, alterations, modifications or replacement of existing facade 
materials on residential or commercial structures. Routine repair and replacement of existing 
siding materials with the same or similar siding materials on existing structures shall be 
exempt from these regulations.  

e. Any new, modified or replacement awnings, signs or similar projections over public sidewalk 
areas.  

f. Any increase or decrease in existing building height and/or alteration of existing roof pitch or 
appearance. Routine repair or replacement of existing roof materials that do not materially 
change or affect the appearance, shape or configuration of the existing roof shall not be 
considered a substantial improvement.  

g. Any construction of a detached accessory structure measuring more than 300 sq. ft. in base 
floor area for a residential or commercial principal use.  

h. Any increase in area of any existing parking area or parking lot or any new construction of a 
parking area or parking lot, which existing or new parking area or parking lot contains or is 
designed to potentially accommodate a total of three or more parking stalls.  

i. Any proposed property boundary fence, which utilizes unusual fencing materials such as 
stones, concrete blocks, logs, steel beams or similar types of atypical or unusual fence 
materials. Standard chain link fences, wooden or vinyl privacy fences shall be exempt from 
these provisions.  

j. Demolition and removal of an entire residential, commercial or institutional structure on a 
property shall not be considered a substantial improvement.  

(d) Administrative review.  

(1) Applicability. The provisions of this section shall constitute the requirements for all premises and 
properties that lie within the boundaries of the College Hill Neighborhood overlay zoning district. 
This section and the requirements stated herein shall apply to all new construction, change in use, 
structural alterations, substantial improvements or site improvements including:  

a. Any substantial improvement to any residential, commercial or institutional structure, including 
churches.  

16



 5 

b. Any new construction, change in use, residential conversion or structural alteration, as defined 
herein, for any structure.  

c. Any new building structure including single-unit residences.  

(2) In the case of emergency repairs required as the result of unanticipated building or facade 
damages due to events such as fire, vandalism, flooding or weather-related damages, site plan 
review by the planning and zoning commission and the city council will not be required for 
completion of said emergency repairs, provided that the extent of damages and cost of said repairs 
are less than 50 percent of the value of the structure. However, said emergency repairs along with 
cost estimates related to the extent of building structural damages shall be verified by the city 
planner in conjunction with the city building inspector. Said emergency repairs, to the extent 
possible, shall repair and re-establish the original appearance of the structure. In the event that 
said emergency repairs result in dramatic alteration of the exterior appearance of the structure as 
determined by the city planner, the owner of the property shall make permanent repairs or 
renovations that re-establish the original appearance of the structure with respect to facade 
features, window and door sizes, locations and appearances of said windows and doors within six 
months following completion of said emergency repairs. Said emergency repairs shall not alter the 
number, size or configuration of pre-existing rooms, bedrooms or dwelling units within the 
structure.  

(3) Submittal requirements. Applicants for any new construction, change in use, structural alteration, 
facade alteration, residential conversion, substantial improvement, parking lot construction or 
building enlargement shall submit to the city planning division an application accompanied by such 
additional information and documentation as shall be deemed appropriate by the city planner in 
order for the planning division to properly review the application. The required application for any 
project may include one or more of the following elements depending upon the nature of the 
application proposal. Some applications will require submittal of more information than other types 
of applications. The city planner will advise the applicant which of these items need to be submitted 
with each application with the goal of providing sufficient information so that decision makers can 
make an informed decision on each application.  

a. Written description of building proposal, whether a new structure, facade improvement, 
parking lot improvement, building addition, etc. The name and address of the property owner 
and property developer (if different) must be provided.  

b. Building floor plans;  

c. Building materials;  

d. Dimensions of existing and proposed exterior building "footprint";  

e. Facade details/exterior rendering of the structure being modified, description of proposed 
building design elements including but not limited to building height, roof design, number and 
location of doors and windows and other typical facade details;  

f. Property boundaries, existing and proposed building setbacks;  

g. Parking lot location, setbacks, parking stall locations and dimensions along with parking lot 
screening details;  

h. Lot area and lot width measurements with explanation if any portion of an adjacent lot or 
property is being transferred to the property under consideration;  

i. Open green space areas and proposed landscaping details with schedule for planting new 
landscaping materials;  

j. Trash dumpster/trash disposal areas;  

17



 6 

k. Storm water detention/management plans.  

Following submittal of the appropriate application materials as determined by the city planner, said 
application materials shall be reviewed by the City of Cedar Falls Planning and Zoning 
Commission and the City Council to determine if the submittal meets all ordinance requirements 
and conforms to the standards of the comprehensive plan, recognized principles of civic design, 
land use planning and landscape architecture. The commission may recommend and the city 
council may approve the application as submitted, may deny the application, or may require the 
applicant to modify, alter, adjust or amend the application as deemed necessary to the end that it 
preserves the intent and purpose of this section to promote the public health, safety and general 
welfare.  

(e) District requirements and criteria for review.  

(1) Minimum on-site parking requirements. If different from the underlying base zone, the following 
requirements shall govern.  

a. Single-unit Dwelling: Two parking stalls per dwelling.  

b.  Single-unit Dwelling, renter-occupied: Two parking stalls per dwelling unit plus one additional 
parking stall for each bedroom in excess of two bedrooms.  

c. Two-unit Dwelling: Two stalls per dwelling units plus one additional stall for each bedroom in 
each dwelling unit in excess of two bedrooms.  

d. Multiple Dwelling: One stall per bedroom, but not less than one stall per dwelling unit.  

e. Commercial and Mixed-Use Buildings: No parking required for non-residential uses. For 
dwelling units within mixed-use buildings, one parking stall per bedroom, but not less than one 
stall per dwelling unit, except as follows. For mixed-use buildings constructed prior to January 
1, 2019, parking is not required for existing dwelling units.  In addition, for mixed-use and 
commercial buildings constructed prior to January 1, 2019, parking is not required for upper 
floor space that is converted to residential use.  

f. Boardinghouse/rooming house: Five stalls plus one stall for every guest room in excess of four 
guest rooms.  

g. Fraternity/sorority: Five parking stalls plus one stall for every two residents in excess of four 
residents.  

h. Where fractional spaces result, the number required shall be the next higher whole number.  

i. Bicycle accommodations: All new multi-unit residential facilities are encouraged to provide for 
the establishment of bicycle racks of a size appropriate for the anticipated residential 
occupancy of the facility. A general suggested bike parking standard is 2 bike stalls per 
residential unit. For commercial projects, if lot area is available, bike racks are encouraged to 
be installed in conjunction with the commercial project.  

(2) Parking lot standards:  

a. All newly constructed or expanded parking lots (three or more parking stalls) shall be hard 
surfaced with concrete or asphalt, provided with a continuous curb, be set back a minimum 
five feet from adjacent property lines or public right-of-way with the exception of alleyways, in 
which case a three foot permeable setback will be required, and otherwise conform to all 
parking guidelines as specified in this section and in section 29-177 of the Zoning Ordinance. 
Alternative parking lot surfaces may be considered to the extent that such surfaces provide 
adequate storm water absorption rates, subject to city engineering review and approval, while 
providing an acceptable surface material and finished appearance. Gravel or crushed asphalt 

18



 7 

parking lots will not be permitted. However, other types of ecologically sensitive parking lot 
designs will be encouraged and evaluated on a case-by-case basis.  

b. Landscaping in parking lots shall be classified as either internal or peripheral. The following 
coverage requirements shall pertain to each classification:  

1. Peripheral landscaping. All parking lots containing three (3) or more parking spaces shall 
provide peripheral landscaping. Peripheral landscaping shall consist of a landscaped strip 
not less than five feet in width, exclusive of vehicular obstruction, and shall be located 
between the parking area and the abutting property lines. One tree for each 25 lineal feet 
of such landscaping barrier or fractional part thereof shall be planted in the landscaping 
strip. At least one tree shall be planted for every parking lot (such as a 3-stall parking lot) 
regardless of the lineal feet calculation. In addition to tree plantings, the perimeter of the 
parking lot shall be screened with shrubbery or similar plantings at least 3 feet in height as 
measured from the finished grade of the parking lot at the time of planting for purposes of 
vehicular screening. The vegetative screen should present a continuous, effective visual 
screen adjacent to the parking lot for purposes of partially obscuring vehicles and also 
deflecting glare from headlights. If landscaped berms are utilized, the berm and vegetative 
screening must achieve at least a 3-foot tall screen at time of installation as measured 
from the grade of the finished parking lot. Each such planting area shall be landscaped 
with grass, ground cover or other landscape material excluding paving, gravel, crushed 
asphalt or similar materials, in addition to the required trees, shrubbery, hedges or other 
planting material. Existing landscaping upon abutting property shall not be used to satisfy 
the requirements for said parking lot screening requirements unless the abutting land use 
is a parking lot.  

2. Exceptions:  

(a) Peripheral landscaping shall not be required for single-unit or two-unit residential 
structures where the primary parking area is designed around a standard front 
entrance driveway and/or attached or detached residential garage. However, if an 
open surface parking lot containing three (3) or more parking stalls is established in 
the rear yard of a two-unit residential structure, the perimeter landscaping/screening 
requirements as specified herein shall apply.  

(b) Peripheral landscaping shall not be required for parking lots that are established 
behind building structures where the parking lots do not have any public street or 
alley frontage or is not adjacent to any open properties such as private yards, parks 
or similar open areas. Examples of such a parking lot would be one designed with a 
multiple unit apartment facility where the parking lot is encircled with building 
structures within the project site and where the parking lot is completely obscured 
from public view by building structures.  

(c) Underground or under-building parking lots.  

(d) Above-ground parking ramps shall provide perimeter screening as specified herein 
around the ground level perimeter of the parking structure.  

3. Internal landscaping. All parking lots measuring 21 parking stalls or more shall be required 
to landscape the interior of such parking lot. At least one over-story tree shall be 
established for every 21 parking stalls. Each tree shall be provided sufficient open planting 
area necessary to sustain full growth of the tree. Not less than five percent of the 
proposed paved area of the interior of the parking lot shall be provided as open space, 
excluding the tree planting areas. These additional open space areas must be planted 
with bushes, grasses or similar vegetative materials. Each separate open green space 

19



 8 

area shall contain a minimum of 40 square feet and shall have a minimum width 
dimension of a least five feet.  

4. Exceptions: Internal landscaping shall not be required for vehicular storage lots, 
trucking/warehousing lots or for automobile sales lots. However, perimeter 
landscaping/screening provisions, as specified herein, shall be required for all such 
parking areas when they are installed or enlarged in area.  

5. Parking Garages or Parking Ramps: All such facilities where one or more levels are 
established for parking either below ground or above ground and where structural walls 
provide for general screening of parked vehicles, internal landscaping shall not be 
provided.  

6. It is the intent of this regulation that in parking development sites open green space and 
landscape areas should be distributed throughout the parking development site rather 
than isolated in one area or around the perimeter of the parking lot. Trees and shrubs 
planted within parking areas shall be protected by concrete curbs and provide adequate 
permeable surface area to promote growth and full maturity of said vegetation.  

c. Parking stalls must provide a minimum separation of four feet from the exterior walls of any 
principal structure on the property as measured from the vehicle (including vehicular 
overhang) to the nearest wall of the structure. No vehicular parking stall shall be so oriented or 
positioned as to block or obstruct any point of egress from a structure, including doorways or 
egress windows.  

d. No portion of required front or side yards in any residential (R) zoning district shall be used for 
the establishment of any parking space, parking area, or parking lot, except for those 
driveways serving a single unit or two-unit residence. For all other uses, a single driveway no 
more than 18 feet in width may be established across the required front and side yards, 
provided that side yard driveway setbacks are observed, as an access to designated rear yard 
parking areas.  

e. When a driveway or access off a public street no longer serves its original purpose as access 
to a garage or parking lot due to redevelopment of the property or is replaced with an 
alternative parking lot or parking arrangement with an alternate route of access, the original 
driveway access shall be re-curbed by the owner at the owner's expense and the parking/ 
driveway area shall be returned to open green space with grass plantings or other similar 
landscaping materials.  

f. Routine maintenance of existing parking areas and parking lots, including resurfacing of said 
areas with similar materials or with hard surfacing will be permitted without requiring review by 
the planning and zoning commission and city council, provided that no increase in area of said 
existing parking area or parking lot, or any new construction of a parking area or parking lot, 
which existing or new parking area or parking lot contains or is designed to potentially 
accommodate a total of three or more parking stalls, occurs. Any newly paved or hard 
surfaced parking lot, excluding those existing hard surface parking lots that are merely being 
resurfaced, must satisfy minimum required setbacks from the property line or alley and must 
provide a continuous curb around the perimeter of said improved parking lot. Hard surfacing of 
any existing unpaved parking area or parking lot will require an evaluation by the city 
engineering division regarding increased storm water run-off/possible storm water detention.  

(3) Storm water drainage:  

a. Storm water detention requirements as outlined in City Code Section 27-405 and in Section 
29-87 of the Zoning Ordinance shall apply to all newly developed parking lots and new building 

20



 9 

uses. In addition, said requirements shall apply to any existing parking lot that is resurfaced, 
reconstructed or enlarged subject to review by the city engineer. In those cases where no 
municipal storm sewer is readily available to serve a particular property or development site, 
the use of the property will be limited. The maximum allowable use that shall be permitted on 
any particular property or development site which is not served by a municipal storm sewer 
shall be limited to the following uses in Residential zoning districts: a parking lot; a single-unit 
residence; a two-unit residence; or a multi-unit residence. Provided, however, that the 
applicant shall be required to submit calculations, which shall be subject to review and 
approval by the city engineering division, that verify that the total impervious surface area on 
the particular property or development site that will exist immediately following completion of 
the proposed new development shall be no greater than the total impervious surface area on 
the particular property or development site that existed immediately prior to the proposed new 
development.  

b. Soil erosion control: At the time of new site development, including parking lot construction, 
soil erosion control measures must be installed on the site in conformance with city 
engineering standards. Said soil erosion measures must be maintained until the site is 
stabilized to the satisfaction of the city engineering division.  

(4) Open space/landscaping requirements:  

a. Principal permitted uses within the district shall provide minimum building setbacks as required 
in the zoning ordinance. With the exception of construction periods said required front and side 
setback areas (required yards) shall be maintained with natural vegetative materials and shall 
not be obstructed with any temporary or permanent structure, on-site vehicular parking 
including trailers or recreational vehicles, nor disturbed by excavations, holes, pits or 
established recreational areas that produce bare spots in the natural vegetation.  

b. Driveways measuring no more than 18 feet in width, sidewalks and pedestrian access ways 
measuring no more than six feet in width may be established across the required front and 
side yard areas.  

c. All newly constructed office or institutional buildings in the R-3 or R-4 districts and all newly 
constructed single unit dwellings, two-unit dwellings, or multiple dwellings in residential or 
commercial districts shall provide on-site landscaping within the required yard areas or in other 
green space areas of the property at the rate of 0.04 points per square foot of total lot area of 
the site under consideration for the proposed residential development or improvement. 
Landscaping shall consist of any combination of trees and shrubbery, subject to review and 
approval by the planning and zoning commission and the city council. In addition to these 
requirements, parking lot plantings and/or screening must be provided as specified herein. 
Plantings must be established within one year following issuance of a building permit. This 
provision shall not apply to commercial or mixed-use buildings established in the C-3, 
commercial district.  

d. Measured compliance: The following landscaping point schedule applies to required 
landscaping in all zoning districts within the College Hill Neighborhood overlay district with the 
exception of commercial uses in the C-3 commercial business district, and shall be used in 
determining achieved points for required plantings. The points are to be assigned to plant 
sizes at time of planting/installation.  

Over-Story Trees:  
 

4-inch caliper or greater  100 points  

3-inch caliper to 4-inch caliper  90 points  

21



 10 

2-inch caliper to 3-inch caliper  80 points  

1-inch caliper to 2-inch caliper  60 points  

  

Under-Story Trees:  
 

2-inch caliper or greater  40 points  

1½-inch caliper to 2-inch caliper  30 points  

1-inch to 1½-inch caliper  20 points  

  

Shrubs:  
 

5-gallon or greater  10 points  

2-gallon to 5-gallon  5 points  

  

Conifers:  
 

10-foot height or greater  100 points  

8-foot to 10-foot height  90 points  

6-foot to 8-foot height  80 points  

5-foot to 6-foot height  40 points  

4-foot to 5-foot height  30 points  

3-foot to 4-foot height  20 points  

  

(5) Fences/retaining walls:  

a. Fences shall be permitted on properties in accordance with the height and location 
requirements outlined in section 29-86 of the Zoning Ordinance. Zoning/land use permits shall 
be required for fences erected within the district.  

b. Any existing fence or freestanding wall that is, in the judgment of the building inspector, 
structurally unsound and a hazard to adjoining property shall be removed upon the order of the 
building inspector.  

c. Retaining walls may be installed on property as a measure to control soil erosion or storm 
water drainage. However, said retaining walls shall be permitted only after review and 
approval by the city engineer.  

(6) Detached accessory structures. All newly constructed detached accessory structures or 
expansions of existing detached accessory structures exceeding 300 sq. ft. in base floor area 

22



 11 

proposed to be situated on residential or commercial properties shall be subject to review and 
approval by the planning and zoning commission and city council. Maximum allowable building 
height, size and location requirements for accessory structures as specified in section 29-115 shall 
apply. In addition to those standards, proposed detached accessory structures or expanded 
structures larger than 300 sq. ft. in area shall be designed in such a manner as to be consistent 
with the architectural style of the principal residential or commercial structure on the property. 
Similar building materials, colors, roof lines, roof pitch and roofing materials shall be established on 
the accessory structure to match as closely as possible those elements on the principal structure. 
In addition, vertical steel siding along with "metal pole barn" type construction shall not be allowed.  

(7) No existing single-unit residential structure in the R-2 district shall be converted or otherwise 
structurally altered in a manner that will result in the creation or potential establishment of a second 
dwelling unit within the structure.  

(8) No two-unit dwelling or multiple dwelling shall add dwelling units or bedrooms to any dwelling unit 
without satisfying minimum on-site parking requirements. If additional parking spaces are required, 
the entire parking area must satisfy parking lot development standards as specified herein.  

(9) No portion of an existing parcel of land or lot or plot shall be split, subdivided or transferred to 
another abutting lot or parcel for any purpose without prior review and approval by the city planning 
and zoning commission and the city council. Land cannot be transferred or split from one lot or 
property to be transferred to another for purposes of benefiting the "receiving" property while 
diminishing the minimum required lot area, lot width or building or parking lot setback area of the 
"sending" property. Such lot transfer or split shall not create a nonconforming lot by virtue of 
reduction of minimum required lot area, lot width or reduction of minimum required building or 
parking lot setbacks. Said lot transfer or split shall not affect any existing nonconforming property 
by further reducing any existing nonconforming element of the lot or property including lot area, lot 
width or building or parking lot setbacks in order to benefit another abutting property for 
development purposes. This provision shall not apply to those instances where separate lots or 
properties are being assembled for purposes of new building construction where existing structures 
on the assembled lots will be removed in order to accommodate new building construction.  

(10) Site plan revisions/amendments: All changes, modifications, revisions and amendments made to 
development site plans that are deemed to be major or substantial by the city planner shall be 
resubmitted to the planning and zoning commission in the same manner as originally required in 
this section. Examples of major or substantial changes shall include but are not limited to changes 
in building location, building size, property size, parking arrangements, enlarged or modified 
parking lots, open green space or landscaping modifications, setback areas or changes in building 
design elements.  

(11) Trash dumpster/trash disposal areas must be clearly marked and established on all site plans 
associated with new development or redevelopment projects. No required parking area or required 
parking stalls shall be encumbered by a trash disposal area.  

a. Large commercial refuse dumpsters and recycling bins serving residential or commercial uses 
shall be located in areas of the property that are not readily visible from public streets. No such 
dumpster or bin shall be established within the public right of way. All dumpsters and bins shall 
be affixed with a solid lid covering and shall be screened for two purposes: (1) visual 
screening; and (2) containing dispersal of loose trash due to over-filling. Screening materials 
shall match or be complementary to the prevailing building materials.  

(f) Design review. Any new construction, building additions, facade renovations or structural alterations to 
commercial or residential structures, or substantial improvements to single-unit residences that, in the 
judgment of the city planner, substantially alters the exterior appearance or character of permitted 

23



 12 

structures shall require review and approval by the Cedar Falls Planning and Zoning Commission and 
City Council.  

(1) Criteria for review:  

a. Applications involving building design review. Neighborhood character, as herein defined, shall 
be considered in all.  

b. The architectural character, materials, textures of all buildings or building additions shall be 
compatible with those primary design elements on structures located on adjoining properties 
and also in consideration of said design elements commonly utilized on other nearby 
properties on the same block or within the immediate neighborhood.  

c. Comparable scale and character in relation to adjoining properties and other nearby properties 
in the immediate neighborhood shall be maintained by reviewing features such as:  

1. Maintaining similar roof pitch.  

2. Maintaining similar building height, building scale and building proportion.  

3. Use of materials comparable and similar to other buildings on nearby properties in the 
immediate neighborhood.  

d. Mandated second entrances or fire escapes established above grade shall not extend into the 
required front yard area.  

e. Existing entrances and window openings on the front facades and side yard facades facing 
public streets shall be maintained in the same general location and at the same general scale 
as original openings or be consistent with neighboring properties.  

f. Projects involving structural improvements or facade renovations to existing structures must 
provide structural detail and ornamentation that is consistent with the underlying design of the 
original building.  

g. The primary front entrances of all residential buildings shall face toward the public street. 
Street frontage wall spaces shall provide visual relief to large blank wall areas with the use of 
windows or doorways and other architectural ornamentation.  

(2) Building entrances for multiple dwellings. Main entrances should be clearly demarcated by one of 
the following:  

a. Covered porch or canopy.  

b. Pilaster and pediment.  

c. Other significant architectural treatment that emphasizes the main entrance. Simple "trim" 
around the doorway does not satisfy this requirement.  

(3) Building scale for multiple dwellings. Street facing walls that are greater than 50 feet in length shall 
be articulated with bays, projections or alternating recesses according to the following suggested 
guidelines:  

a. Bays and projections should be at least 6 feet in width and at least 16 inches, but not more 
than 6 feet, in depth. Recesses should be at least 6 feet in width and have a depth of at least 
16 inches.  

b. The bays, projections and recesses should have corresponding changes in roofline or, 
alternatively, should be distinguished by a corresponding change in some architectural 
elements of the building such as roof dormers, alternating exterior wall materials, a change in 

24



 13 

window patterns, the addition of balconies, variation in the building or parapet height or 
variation in architectural details such as decorative banding, reveals or stone accents.  

(4) Building scale for commercial buildings and mixed-use buildings. The width of the front façade of 
new commercial and mixed-use buildings shall be no more than 40 feet. Buildings may exceed this 
limitation if the horizontal plane of any street-facing façade of a building is broken into modules that 
give the appearance or illusion of smaller, individual buildings. Each module should satisfy the 
following suggested guidelines that give the appearance of separate, individual buildings:  

a. Each module should be no greater than 30 feet and no less than 10 feet in width and should 
be distinguished from adjacent modules by variation in the wall plane of at least 16 inches 
depth. For buildings 3 or more stories in height the width module may be increased to 40 feet.  

b. Each module should have a corresponding change in roof line for the purpose of separate 
architectural identity.  

c. Each module should be distinguished from the adjacent module by at least one of the following 
means:  

1. Variation in material colors, types, textures  

2. Variation in the building and/or parapet height  

3. Variation in the architectural details such as decorative banding, reveals, stones or tile 
accent  

4. Variation in window pattern  

5. Variation in the use of balconies and recesses.  

(5) Balconies and exterior walkways, corridors and lifts serving multi-unit residences.  

a. Exterior stairways refer to stairways that lead to floors and dwelling units of a building above 
the first or ground level floor of a building. Exterior corridors refer to unenclosed corridors 
located above the first floor or ground level floor of a building. Balconies and exterior 
stairways, exterior corridors and exterior lifts must comply with the following:  

1. Materials must generally match or be complementary to the building materials utilized on 
that portion of a building where the exterior corridor or balcony is established.  

2. Unpainted wooden materials are expressly prohibited.  

3. Stained or painted wood materials may only be utilized if said material and coloration is 
guaranteed for long term wear and the material is compatible with the principal building 
materials on that portion of the building where the exterior corridor is established.  

4. The design of any balcony, exterior stairway, exterior lift or exterior corridor must utilize 
columns, piers, supports, walls and railings that are designed and constructed of materials 
that are similar or complementary to the design and materials used on that portion of the 
building where the feature is established.  

5. Exterior stairways, exterior lifts, corridors and balconies must be covered with a roof 
similar in design and materials to the roof over the rest of the structure. Said roof shall be 
incorporated into the overall roof design for the structure. Alternatively, such features 
(stairways, lifts, corridors or balconies) may be recessed into the façade of the building.  

6. Exterior corridors may not be located on a street-facing wall of the building.  

b. Exterior fire egress stairways serving second floor or higher floors of multi-unit residences 
shall be allowed according to city requirements on existing buildings that otherwise are not 

25



 14 

able to reasonably satisfy city fire safety code requirements, provided the fire egress stairway 
or structure is not located on the front door wall of a building that faces a street. All such 
egress structures that are located on the front door wall of a building that faces a street, 
whether new or replacement of an existing egress structure, shall be subject to review by the 
commission and approval by the city council. Areas of review shall be general design, 
materials utilized and location of the proposed egress structure. On corner lots, if a side street-
facing mandated access is necessary and other options are unavailable, the side-street facing 
wall shall be used for this egress structure. In any case, fire egress stairways must utilize 
similar materials as outlined above; i.e., no unpainted wooden material shall be allowed.  

(6) Building materials.  

a. For multiple dwellings, at least 30% of the exterior walls of the front facade level of a building 
must be constructed with a masonry finish such as fired brick, stone or similar material, not to 
include concrete blocks and undressed poured concrete. Masonry may include stucco or 
similar material when used in combination with other masonry finishes. The following trim 
elements shall be incorporated into the exterior design and construction of the building, with 
the following recommended dimensions to be evaluated on a case-by-case basis:  

1. Window and door trim that is not less than 3 inches wide.  

2. Corner boards that are not less than 3 inches wide unless wood clapboards are used and 
mitered at the corners.  

3. Frieze boards not less than 5 inches wide, located below the eaves.  

b.  For commercial and mixed-use buildings, street-facing facades shall be comprised of at least 
30% brick, stone, or terra cotta. These high quality materials should be concentrated on the 
base of the building. On street-facing facades, a minimum of 70% of the ground level floor 
between 2 and 10 feet in height above the adjacent ground level shall consist of clear and 
transparent storefront windows and doors that allow views into the interior of the store. 
Exceptions may be allowed for buildings on corner lots where window coverage should be 
concentrated at the corner, but may be reduced along the secondary street façade. The 
bottom of storefront windows shall be no more than 2 feet above the adjacent ground level, 
except along sloping sites, where this standard shall be met to the extent possible so that 
views into the interior of the store are maximized and blank walls are avoided. 

c. Any portion of a building with a side street façade must be constructed using similar materials 
and similar proportions and design as the front facade.  

d. Exposed, unpainted or unstained lumber materials are prohibited along any facade that faces 
a street-side lot line (i.e., public street frontage).  

e. Where an exterior wall material changes along the horizontal plane of a building, the material 
change must occur on an inside corner of the building.  

f. For buildings where the exterior wall material on the side of the building is a different material 
than what is used on the street facing or wall front, the street facing or wall front material must 
wrap around the corners to the alternate material side of the building at least 3 additional feet.  

g. Where an exterior wall material changes along the vertical plane of the building, the materials 
must be separated by a horizontal band such as a belt course, soldier course, band board or 
other trim to provide a transition from one material to another.  

(g) Commercial district. The College Hill Neighborhood commercial district is defined by the boundaries of 
the C-3, commercial zoning district. The district is made up primarily of commercial buildings and 
mixed-use buildings. However, some properties are occupied or may be occupied in the future by 

26



 15 

residential buildings. Residential buildings are to be discouraged due to the limited area available for 
commercial uses. Standards for residential buildings are set forth below. However, dwelling units 
located on upper floor(s) of mixed-use buildings are allowed, as set forth below.  

(1) Residential buildings are only allowed within the commercial district subject to planning and zoning 
commission and city council review and approval. In general, such uses are to be discouraged 
within the commercial district due to the limited area available for commercial establishments. In 
those cases where a residential building is permitted, said residential use will be governed by 
minimum lot area, lot width and building setback requirements as specified in the R-4, Residential 
zoning district. In addition, all other applicable requirements pertaining to substantial improvements 
or new construction of any residential use shall conform to the requirements of this section, 
including on-site parking, landscaping, and building setbacks, with no vehicular parking allowed in 
the required front and side yards, said required yards being those as defined within the R-4, 
Residential district.  

(2) Commercial and mixed-use buildings are allowed. In a mixed-use building, no residential use may 
be established on the main floor or street level floor, other than entrance and lobby areas that 
provide access to upper floor uses. To provide safe access for residents of the building, there must 
be at least one main entrance on the street-facing façade of the building that provides pedestrian 
access to dwelling units within the building. Access to dwelling units must not be solely through a 
parking garage or from a rear or side entrance. To foster active street frontages, commercial and 
mixed-use buildings must be placed to the front and corner of lots, and set back a minimum of 0 
feet and maximum of 15 feet from street-side lot lines. The ground floor floor-to-structural ceiling 
height shall be 14 feet minimum. Entries to individual ground floor tenant spaces and entries to 
common lobbies accessing upper floor space shall open directly onto public sidewalks or publicly-
accessible outdoor plazas. Thresholds at building entries shall match the grade of the adjacent 
sidewalk or plaza area. Entries on street-facing facades shall be sheltered by awnings or canopies 
that project a minimum of four feet from the building façade and must be a minimum of 8 feet 
above the adjacent sidewalk.  

(3) Conditional uses. The following uses may be allowed as a conditional use subject to review and 
approval by the planning and zoning commission and the city council. The proposed use must 
conform to the prevailing character of the district and such use shall not necessitate the use of 
outdoor storage areas. In addition such conditional uses must not generate excessive amounts of 
noise, odor, vibrations, or fumes, or generate excessive amounts of truck traffic. Examples of uses 
that may be allowed subject to approval of a conditional use permit are:  

a. Printing or publishing facility;  

b. Limited manufacturing activity that is directly related to the operation of a retail business 
conducted on the premises;  

c. Home supply business.  

(4) Prohibited uses. In all cases the following uses will not be allowed within the C-3, commercial 
district either as permitted or conditional uses:  

a. Lumber yards;  

b. Used or new auto sales lots and displays;  

c. Auto body shop;  

d. Storage warehouse or business;  

e. Mini-storage warehouse;  

f. Sheet metal shop;  

27



 16 

g. Outdoor storage yard;  

h. Billboard signs.  

(5) Signage. Typical business signage shall be permitted without mandatory review by the planning 
and zoning commission and approval by the city council unless a proposed sign projects or 
extends over the public right-of-way, or a free-standing pole sign is proposed which is out of 
character with the prevailing height or size of similar signs, in which case planning and zoning 
commission review and approval by the city council shall be required. All signage within the district 
shall conform to the general requirements of the Cedar Falls Zoning Ordinance, with the exception 
that excessively tall free-standing signs (i.e., 30 feet or more in height) shall not be allowed.  

Exterior mural wall drawings, painted artwork and exterior painting of any structure within the 
commercial district shall be subject to review by the planning and zoning commission and approval 
by the city council for the purpose of considering scale, context, coloration, and appropriateness of 
the proposal in relation to nearby facades and also in relation to the prevailing character of the 
commercial district.  

 
 
INTRODUCED:     February 18, 2019   

PASSED 1ST CONSIDERATION:   February 18, 2019 _____ 

PASSED 2ND CONSIDERATION:       

PASSED 3RD CONSIDERATION:       

ADOPTED:          

 
____________________________ 

       James P. Brown, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
________________________________ 
Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk  

28



   MAYOR JIM BROWN 

 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
220 CLAY STREET 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
319-273-8600 

FAX 319-268-5126 
M E M O R A N D U M 

Office of the Mayor 
  

 TO: City Council 

 FROM: Mayor Jim Brown 

 DATE: February 25, 2019 

 SUBJECT: Reappointments 

 

I am recommending the following reappointments: 

 

Name: Board/Commission: Term Ending: 
   
Mark Miller Board of Adjustment (reappointment) 03/31/2024 
Gerald Sorensen Board of Adjustment (reappointment) 03/31/2024 
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   

   
 

 
 

29



30



31



32



33



34



COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE 
City Hall – Council Chambers  

February 18, 2019 
 

The Committee of the Whole met in the Council Chambers at 5:20 p.m. on February 18, 2019, 
with the following Committee persons in attendance:  Mayor Jim Brown, Tom Blanford, Frank 
Darrah, Susan deBuhr, Rob Green, Daryl Kruse, Mark Miller, and David Wieland.  Staff 
members attended from all City Departments.  Mark G. Miller, Gerald Sorensen, Andy Miller 
with Wantman Group, Inc. (WGI), Tom Nelson with the Waterloo Courier, and other members 
of the community also attended.  

Mayor Brown called the meeting to order and introduced the first item on the agenda, Board of 
Adjustment Interview – Mark G. Miller.  Mr. Miller stated this is a reappointment to the Board of 
Adjustment.   He explained he has served nine years.  A brief discussion was held. 

Mayor Brown called the meeting to order and introduced the second item on the agenda, 
Board of Adjustment Interview – Gerald Sorensen.  Mr. Sorensen stated this is a 
reappointment to the Board of Adjustment.   He explained he has served six years.  A brief 
discussion was held. 

Mayor Brown introduced the third item on the agenda, the Downtown Parking Study.  Andy 
Miller with WGI gave a presentation to review the parking study information.  He stated this 
presentation will be similar to the public information meeting which was held in January.  He 
explained the process started in October and included an online survey in which 2,683 surveys 
were received.  He reviewed parking violations and stated the City’s handhelds are compatible 
with LPR and pay-by-mobile technology platforms.   He reviewed the parking in the downtown 
area at various times, including lunch times, peak evening, and after 8:00 p.m.  He reviewed 
parking occupancy counts for two different dates; October 25-26 and December 6-7.  He 
stated maximum efficiency is 85% occupancy and the City is in line with this.  Mr. Miller 
reviewed the new developments and their standalone parking lots.  He explained after review, 
the number of parking stalls is adequate when he analyzed using the Urban Land Institute 
rating scale.  He reviewed the number of parking spots in the downtown area and also 
reviewed the parking restrictions in the downtown corridor and what modifications could take 
place.  He stated there is a possibility to add additional parallel parking spots along some of 
the downtown streets.  Mr. Miller stated he reviewed other cities of comparable size; however 
he found no good comparison.  He also reviewed the street scape improvement plan.  Mr. 
Miller reviewed a list of recommendations he developed when completing the study; stating he 
is using them as a planning guide for short-term, mid-term, and long-term recommendations.   

Mayor Brown opened it up for discussion from Council.   Mr. Miller answered questions with 
regards to parking time restrictions for specific businesses, utilizing private parking lots, 
enforcement time changes to include evenings and weekends, parking kiosks instead of 
meters, and differences in overnight parking permits from day time permits.  Mayor Brown 
opened it up for comments from the public.  Rosemary Beach 5018 Sage Road asked about 
additional handicapped parking.  Mr. Miller stated this could be reviewed during the downtown 
street scape improvements. LeAnn Saul of 1825 W. Greenhill Road commented on mass 
transit’s effect on the parking study.  Mr. Miller stated there is a .2% use of public transit to get 
to work and stated Cedar Falls is not a public transit community like other cities in Iowa.   
Eashaan Vajpeyi of 3831 Convair Lane commented that new developments should be 

35



reviewed for parking requirements.  Ivan Wieland of 2216 W. 3rd Street commented the 
downtown is oversaturated with restaurants and bars. Kevin Rogers, City Attorney, stated we 
could not limit the type of commerce.  Deb Iehl of 4219 East Park Road commented she would 
like the 2-hour parking to remain next to Agape Physical Therapy as it works well with their 
patron’s appointments.  She also stated additional lighting should be looked at on a few 
streets.  Carol Lilly with Community Main Street looked forward to working with the City and is 
happy about the parking study.   

Jennifer Rodenbeck, Director of Finance and Business Operations, stated the next steps 
would be for ordinance changes to be made and be presented at the Council meeting.  Frank 
Darrah motioned to approve the downtown parking study findings and to direct staff to precede 
ahead with the proposed implementation recommendations. Mark Miller seconded the motion. 
The motion carried unanimously.  

Mayor Brown introduced the final item on the agenda, bills and payroll. Daryl Kruse moved to 
approve the bills as presented, Rob Green seconded the motion.  The motion carried 
unanimously.  

There being no further discussion, Mayor Brown adjourned the meeting at 6:41 p.m.  

Minutes by Lisa Roeding, Controller/City Treasurer 

36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



77



78



79



80



81



82



83



84



85



86



87



88



89



90



91



92



93



94



95



96



97



98



99



100



101



102



103



104



105



106



   DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC SAFETY SERVICES 

  POLICE OPERATIONS 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS 

  220 CLAY STREET 
  CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
 

  319-273-8612 
 

MEMORANDUM 

To:  Mayor Brown and City Councilmembers 

From:  Jeff Olson, Public Safety Services Director/Chief of Police 

Date:  February 28, 2019 

Re:  Special Event Related Requests 

Police Operations has received the following special event related requests and 
recommends approval:  

a) Street closure, Panther Caravan, May 22, 2019. 

107



108



109



110



111



112



113



114



115



   DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC SAFETY SERVICES 

  POLICE OPERATIONS 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS 

  220 CLAY STREET 
  CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
 

  319-273-8612 
 

MEMORANDUM 

To:  Mayor Brown and City Councilmembers 

From:  Jeff Olson, Public Safety Services Director/Chief of Police 

Date:  February 28, 2019 

Re:  Beer/Liquor License Applications 

Police Operations has received applications for liquor licenses and/ or wine or beer 
permits. We find no records that would prohibit these license and permits and 
recommend approval. 

Name of Applicants:  

a) Pheasant Ridge Golf Course, 3205 West 12th Street, Class B beer & outdoor 
service - renewal. 

b) Happy's Wine & Spirits, 5925 University Avenue, Class E liquor - renewal. 
 

c) Hillstreet News & Tobacco, 2217 College Street, Class E liquor - renewal. 

116



   DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE & BUSINESS OPERATIONS 

 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

220 CLAY STREET 

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 

319-273-8600 

FAX 319-268-5126 
     M E M O R A N D U M 

 

 

 TO: Mayor Brown and City Council Members 

 FROM: Paul Kockler, Accountant 

 DATE: February 25, 2019 

 SUBJECT: February 1, 2019 Long-Term Disability Plan Amendment 

  
 
National Insurance Services and the City of Cedar Falls have agreed upon an amendment 
to the City’s long-term disability insurance plan that increases the maximum covered 
annualized salary of the plan to $200,000. The previous maximum covered annualized 
salary of the plan was $150,000. The premium rate will remain unchanged.  Attached is an 
updated Joinder Agreement for long-term disability insurance.   
 
If you have questions regarding the attached, please contact me at 268-5101. 
 
Attachments 

117



AMENDMENT #2 TO 

NATIONAL INSURANCE SERVICES TRUST 

JOINDER AGREEMENT FOR 

LONG-TERM DISABILITY INSURANCE 

 

Carrier No:  0377 Carrier:  MNL  

    

Group Name:  City of Cedar Falls State:  IA 

  

Employee Classification: 01 Administrators   

 

This Amendment, made part of the National Insurance Services Trust Joinder Agreement (the 

“Agreement”) by and between the Administrator of the National Insurance Services Trust and City of 

Cedar Falls, (the “Employer”), amends certain provisions of the Agreement effective February 1, 2019 

as specified below. Provisions under this Amendment are subject to all the terms and conditions, 

limitations and exclusions of the entire contract, unless otherwise stated herein. 

  

Benefit Change(s):       

 

• Under ‘B. Class and Benefit Summary’, under ‘Class Number: 01’, the items entitled ‘Maximum 

Monthly Covered Salary:’, ‘Maximum Monthly Benefit:’, and ‘Guarantee Issue:’ are hereby deleted 

in their entirety and replaced with the following: 

 

Class Number: 01 

‘Maximum Monthly Covered Salary: $16,667 

 Maximum Monthly Benefit:  $15,000 for the first 6 months;  

$11,667 thereafter 

 Guarantee Issue: $15,000 for the first 6 months;  

$11,667 thereafter’ 

 

 

Rates: The premium rate will remain unchanged. 

 

The above rates are guaranteed until the next plan renewal date.  This rate guarantee will not pertain to 

adjustments in premium rate due to amendments requested by the Employer. 

 

Continued payment of premium constitutes acceptance of this Amendment, which becomes a part of the 

entire contract. It shall continue in force under the same provisions that govern the entire contract.  All 

other terms, provisions and conditions of the entire contract remain unchanged except as stated above. 

 

 

Accepted for 

NATIONAL INSURANCE SERVICES TRUST 

 by Administrator,  National Insurance 

 Services of Wisconsin, Inc. 

  

 
 Date: February 21, 2019 

118



119



120



121



122



123



124



125



126



127



128



129



130



131



132



133



134



135



136



137



138



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 

 
City of Cedar Falls  
220 Clay Street  
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613   
www.cedarfalls.com  

 
Administration Division  Planning & Community Services Division 

Phone: 319-273-8600  Fax: 319-273-8610 
 

Engineering Division  Inspection Services Division 
Phone: 319-268-5161  Fax: 319-268-5197 

 
Water Reclamation Division 

Phone: 319-273-8633  Fax: 319-268-5566 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

  

 

 TO: Honorable Mayor James P. Brown and City Council 

 FROM: Terra Ray, Engineer Tech II 

 DATE: February 26, 2019 

 SUBJECT: W. 1
st
 Street Reconstruction Project - Property Acquisitions 

  Project # RC-000-3118 
  State Project # STP-57-2(28)-2C-07 
 
The City of Cedar Falls is working with the Iowa Department of Transportation on the 
reconstruction to W. 1

st
 Street from Hudson Road to the Center/Franklin Street intersection. The 

project is in the final design phase, acquisitions of the necessary right of way needs are 
underway to meet the DOT and City’s funding years for construction. The utilities and other 
infrastructure work will be started early next year. The road construction will take place in 2019-
2020. This project includes a total reconstruction of the roadway from a four lane to a five lane 
facility. The project identifies the need for total acquisitions from three (3) properties and partial 
acquisitions from 68 properties. 
 
Appraisals and offers are gradually being sent to the properties affected by this corridor 
reconstruction project. The owners of the following properties have accepted our offer. 
 
 
Parcel # Owner Address Acquisition Type 

48 Thomas and Dorinda Pounds 704-706 W. 1
st
 Street Fee (revised) 

 
Attached is a map that identifies the location of these properties. 
 
The City will use federal funds for the design and right of way portion of this project. Per an 
agreement with the DOT approved on August 7, 2017, the city will be the lead in property 
acquisition and design. All eligible project costs will be split 50% City and 50% DOT which 
includes engineering, right of way, construction and construction administration. The city signed 
as agreement with Snyder and Associates on September 5, 2017 for these services. Funds for 
this project are identified in the Cedar Falls Capital Improvements Program in FY18 and FY20 
under item number 91. If approved, the City Attorney will prepare the necessary closing 
documents and staff will complete the acquisition process for these parcels. 
 
Staff recommends that the City Council state their support in the form of a resolution approving 

139



the acquisitions and authorize the Mayor to execute the agreements for the W. 1
st
 Street 

reconstruction project. 
 
If you have any questions or need additional information, please feel free to contact me. 
 
xc: Stephanie Sheetz, Director 
 Chase Schrage, Principal Engineer 
 David Sturch, Planner III 
  

140



141



142



143



144



Ol
ive

 St

Wa
lnu

t S
t

Tre
mo

nt
 St

N 
Co

lle
ge

 St

Co
tta

ge
 G

rvElm St

Pa
rk

Dr

Edgewood St

Linda Dr

W 3rd St

Theimer St

W 2nd St

W 1st St

Pine St

Hu
ds

on
 R

d

Fr
an

cis
 St

Di
vis

ion
 St

Fo
rre

st 
Rd

W 3rd St

Ca
the

rin
e S

t

Ida St

Pe
ar

l S
t

Oak St

Parkway Ave

Ell
en

 St

Hu
ds

on
 R

d

Iow
a S

t

Ge
ne

vie
ve

 St

W 4th St

Fr
an

kli
n S

t

N 
Fr

an
cis

 S
t

NEll enS t

S Park Rd

Edgewood St

N 
Di

vis
ion

 S
t

N 
Ge

ne
vie

ve
 S

t

Ba
ke

r D
r

Parkway Ave

N 
Ge

ne
vie

ve
 S

t

Higby Dr

Crescent Dr

Center St

75
74 6973

68
67

72 66 6571 64 63 62
61

60
59 58

57 56
55

54
52

51
50 49 48 47 46

45
4144

43

252 3 4 5 7 8 299 30 31
10

11
12

13
14

15
16

17
18

19 20
21

22
23 24

1

77
42

28

76 70
53

5 6 26 27

I

Signed
Submitted for Approval
Condemnation

145



146



147



148



149



150



151



152



153



154



155



156



157



158



159



160



161



162



163



164



165



166



167



168



169



170



171



172



173



174



175



176



177



178



179



180



181



182



183



184



185



186



187



188



189



190



191



192



193



194



195



196



197



198



199



200



201



202



203



204



205



206



207



208



209



210



211



212



213



214



215



216



217



218



219



220



221



222



223



224



225



226



227



228



229



230



231



232



233



234



235



236



237



238



239



240



241



242



243



244



245



246



247



248



249



250



251



252



253



254



255



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 

MEMORANDUM 
Planning & Community Services Division 

  

   

 

 

 
 
 

 TO: Honorable Mayor James P. Brown and City Council  

 FROM: Iris Lehmann, Planner II 

 DATE: February 27, 2019 

 SUBJECT: Rental to Single Family Owner Conversion Incentive Program: 821 Olive Street 
 
The Rental to Single Family Owner Conversion Incentive Program was adopted by City 
Council on December 21, 2015.  The program offers a Forgivable Loan of up to $10,000 for 
exterior improvements to a residential rental property being purchased and converted to a 
single family owner occupied residence.  The goal is to improve and positively impact 
neighborhood character and encourage private improvements to rental properties converting to 
owner occupied. The concept of the Rental to Single Family Owner Conversion Incentive 
Program was developed initially through the City established Rental Task Force. 
 
Michael and Ashley Conrad purchased 821 Olive Street in October 2018. The new owners 
have submitted an application, attached, to be considered for the Rental to Single Family 
Owner Conversion Incentive Program. The property is located in the R-2 zoning district, falls 
within the program’s geographical boundaries, and is in a block with less than 75% rentals. 
The property directly to the north, 815 Olive Street, was approved for the Rental to Single 
Family Owner Conversion Incentive Program in September 2018.  
 
The property under consideration has a unique history. The previous owner purchased the 
property in 2004 and lived in it until 2006 when the owner moved out and started to rent the 
property to his ex-wife as part of a divorce settlement. Prior to the 2015 rental ordinance 
change, no rental permits were required for renting between family members. The property 
became vacant in 2015. In August 2018 the current owners rented the property from the 
previous owner until they purchased it in October 2018. Soon after purchasing the property 
they applied to the Rental to Single Family Owner Conversion Incentive Program with the 
assumption that the property had previously been a rental property. Paperwork from both the 
previous owner and the current owners has been provided to validate this history. However, 
there is no record of the property being registered as a rental property with the City.  
 
Although 821 Olive Street has not been a registered rental with the City, staff finds that this 
property meets the intent of the three year rental requirement of the Rental to Single Family 
Owner Conversion Incentive Program and warrants consideration.  The previous home owner 
had either rented or left the property vacant since 2006. Approving this property for the 
program would provide funds to increase the livability of this home, which in turn helps to 
stabilize and encourage additional investment in the neighborhood. Staff does not feel that the 
new buyers should be penalized for the previous owner not filing rental paperwork. Since this 

256



project is consistent with the intent of the program and given the potential long term benefits to 
the neighborhood, staff recommends that an exception be made in this case. 
 
Michael and Ashley Conrad are proposing to demolish the existing single car garage, build a 
new attached double car garage, and replace the existing driveway and sidewalks. The 
submitted site plan for the proposed garage addition meets zoning requirements. Based on the 
submitted cost estimates, the improvements listed will be over $20,000.  
 
The Community Development Department recommends adopting a resolution approving this 
property for a forgivable loan of up to $10,000.00 with the placement of a lien on the property 
for which 20% will be forgiven each year for five years with pro-rated payback if sold prior to 
the end of five years. Half of the forgivable loan will be paid upon City Council approval with 
the balance paid upon completion of the improvements, inspection by the City, and verification 
of the actual costs of the improvements. This approval is subject to the property passing a 
major system evaluation (city inspection) and the proper permits being pulled for the proposed 
improvements. 
 
If you have any questions, please contact the Community Development Department. 
 
Xc:  Stephanie Sheetz, Community Development Director 
       Karen Howard, Planning & Community Services Manager 

257



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
This instrument was drafted by:  Iris Lehmann, Community Development Department, 
City of Cedar Falls, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, IA  50613, Phone:  319-268-5185. 

 
 

LIEN NOTICE AND SPECIAL PROMISSORY NOTE 
 

 
Account No. 101-2245-44-89.79 Amount  $  10,000.00 

 
Date:    

 
RE: Property located at: 821 Olive Street  

and legally described as PACIFIC ADDITION LOT 90 S 6 FT LOT 91 

 
 
(hereinafter the “Rehabilitated Property”). 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, has advanced certain sums to the following owner or 
owners: Michael Conrad and Ashley Conrad (hereinafter referred to as “Owner”), under the a 
Rental to Owner Conversion Program, which Program requires that an encumbrance be placed 
upon the above-described Property, upon the terms and conditions set forth below.  
 
IT IS AGREED by the Owner as follows: 
 
FOR VALUE RECEIVED, the undersigned Owner, jointly and severally promises to pay to the 
order of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, or its successors or assigns (hereinafter the “City”), the 
sum of ten thousand and 00/100 Dollars ($10,000.00) (hereinafter the “Loan”), as follows: 
 

A. If the Property is sold or transferred within twelve (12) months of the date of this 
agreement, one hundred (100) percent of the Loan shall become due and 
payable to the City; 

 
B. If the Rehabilitated Property is sold or transferred any time between the 13th and 

24th month from the date of this agreement, eighty (80) percent of the Loan shall 
become due and payable to the City; 

 
C. If the Rehabilitated Property is sold or transferred any time between the 25th and 

36th month from the date of this agreement, sixty (60) percent of the Loan shall 
become due and payable to the City: 

 
D. If the Rehabilitated Property is sold or transferred any time between the 37th and 

48th month from the date of this agreement, forty (40) percent of the Loan shall 
become due and payable to the City: 

 
 

258



E. If the Rehabilitated Property is sold or transferred any time between the 49th and 
60th month from the date of this agreement, twenty (20) percent of the Loan shall 
become due and payable to the City: 

 
F. After the sixtieth (60) month from the date of this instrument, the entire amount of 

the Loan is forgiven and no money will be due and payable to the City; 
 
G. Owner shall own and occupy the Property as the Owner’s principal residence at 

all times during the sixty (60) month period described herein. In the event the 
Owner fails to occupy the Rehabilitated Property as the Owner’s principal 
residence for any period of two (2) consecutive months, for any reason, or sells, 
transfers, rents, abandons, vacates or otherwise in any manner fails to occupy 
the Property, whether voluntarily or involuntarily, prior to the termination of the 
sixty (60) month period described herein, Owner shall immediately notify the City 
thereof. If during said sixty (60) month period, Owner shall violate the foregoing 
requirements, Owner shall immediately pay to the City the percentage of the 
unforgiven principal amount of the Loan, based upon the foregoing schedule, for 
the period between the date of this agreement and the date Owner fails to meet 
the foregoing requirements. 

 
H. Notwithstanding the provisions of paragraph G. above, if the failure of Owner to 

comply with the requirements of paragraph G. is due to medical circumstances 
beyond the reasonable control of Owner as defined in this paragraph, the entire 
amount of the Loan shall be forgiven, and no money will be due and payable to 
the City. For purposes of this agreement, “medical circumstances beyond the 
reasonable control of the Owner” shall include, without limitation, the death of the 
Owner, and the relocation of the Owner if prescribed by a medical doctor for 
health or disability reasons, with said relocation being to another climate, to a 
nursing or other care facility, or to an apartment or other facility, if deemed by 
Owner’s medical doctor as more suitable for the health and care of the Owner. 

 
 
   

   
Michael Conrad  Ashley Conrad 

OWNER  OWNER 
   

 
 
STATE OF IOWA  ) 
    ) ss: 
COUNTY OF BLACK HAWK ) 
 
This instrument was acknowledged before me on the ___ day of ________, 2019, by Michael 
Conrad and Ashley Conrad. 
 
 
      _________________________________________ 
      Notary Public in and for the State of Iowa 

259



260



261



262



263



264



265



266



267



268



269



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 

MEMORANDUM 
Planning & Community Services Division 

  

   

 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 TO: Honorable Mayor James P. Brown and City Council 

 FROM: Iris Lehmann, Planner II 

  Matt Tolan, Civil Engineer II 

 DATE: February 28, 2019 

 SUBJECT: Greenhill Village Townhomes II – Preliminary Plat 
 

 
REQUEST: 
 

Request to approve the Greenhill Village Townhomes II Preliminary Plat 

PETITIONER: 
 

Panther Farms LLC – owner; CGA Engineers – Civil Engineer 

LOCATION: 
 

5.3 acres southeast of the Greenhill Road and Hudson Road intersection 

 

 
PROPOSAL 
The applicant is proposing to subdivide a 5.3 acre parcel in the MU, Mixed Use Residential, 
zoning district with the intent to develop townhome buildings. The proposal consists of one 
developable lot, tracts for future streets and stormwater basins, and two outlots as placeholders 
for future development. 
 
BACKGROUND 
In 1998 the approximately 130 acres of the Greenhill Village 
property was rezoned to MU, Mixed Use Residential. This 
rezoning was accompanied by the creation of a Greenhill 
Village Master Plan that was to be used as a guide for the 
development in this area. Since that time there have been a 
number of amendments to the Greenhill Village Master Plan. 
The most recent amendment to the Master Plan was 
approved in April 2018. This amendment to the Master Plan 
focused on the 5.3 acres southeast of the Greenhill Road and 
Hudson Road intersection; the area being considered in this 
request.  The majority of the 5.3 acres were originally 
designated for single-unit residential development at a 
maximum density of 3.14 units an acre. This particular 
section the Master Plan showed 12 single unit homes. The 
shaded area in green, in the image on the top right, was 
originally marked for commercial development. The approved 

 2003 Master Plan 

Approved 2018 Concept Plan 

270



amendment to the Master Plan allows for medium density, multi-unit, residential development at 
a maximum density of 7.7 units an acre. The concept plan that was approved with this update to 
the Greenhill Village Master Plan presented a development of townhomes, see image on 
previous page. The concept plan shows 40 townhome units. 
 
ANALYSIS 
The property in question is located within the MU, Mixed Use Residential, zoning district. The 
intent of the MU district is to encourage a variety of housing types and neighborhood 
commercial land uses for the purpose of creating viable, self-supporting neighborhood 
districts. Therefore, MU districts permit a variety of uses ranging from neighborhood commercial 
to office to single-unit homes to multi-unit condominiums. The approved Greenhill Village Master 
Plan, attached, arranges the various permitted uses and densities by area and provides a guide 
for street connections within the district. The Master Plan designates this site for townhome 
development along an extension of Loren Drive, which will create an east-west connection to 
Norse Drive. The Master Plan also shows Addison Drive extending north to connect to the 
extension of Loren Drive. This connection will create another point of egress and ingress for the 
residential properties to the south. Additional street connections in this area will help to distribute 
traffic by providing multiple travel routes through the neighborhood. The layout of the proposed 
Greenhill Village Townhomes II Preliminary Plat provides the street connections as described 
and is consistent with the approved Greenhill Village Master Plan.  
 
The proposed Preliminary Plat will 
create one buildable lot, Lot 1, 
outlined in red to the right. This lot 
will be 0.98 acres in size. The 
remainder of the site’s 5.3 acres will 
be platted as a tract for future street 
connections (Tract C), outlots for 
future development (Outlots A and 
Outlot B), and two tracts for detention 
basins (Tract A and Tract B). The 
detention basin in Tract B, outlined in 
blue in the image to the right, will be 
installed with the creation of Lot 1. 
Along with the installation of this 
detention basin, the land in Outlot B, 
outlined in green, will be graded to 
guide stormwater from Lot 1 to this 
detention basin. This improvement ensures that the water runoff from the new development that 
will occur on Lot 1 will be properly managed. This detention basin will be oversized to also serve 
future development that may occur in Outlot B. The second detention basin, Tract A, will be 
installed in the future when Outlots A and B are platted for development. A private alley is 
proposed coming south off of Lloyd Lane to provide access to Lot 1. This private alley 
connection meets city standards and allows more flexibility with the grading of the site as 
opposed to a connection coming from the south.  Public sidewalks will be installed on the west 
and north sides of Lot 1 as well as the east side of Tract B. Other public sidewalks will be 
installed in conjunction with the future extension of Loren Drive and Addison Drive once Outlots 
A and B are platted for development. Utilities are readily available to this site. The developer will 
coordinate with CFU for extending the utility services to the proposed development.   
 

271



Tract B on the Preliminary Plat replaces a six unit townhome building that was shown on the 
approved 2018 Concept Plan. With this change, at full build out, this site would have 34 
townhome units with a density of 6.4 units an acre. The City’s Future Land Use map defines 
medium density development as 4 to 12 units per acre. The original 1998 Rezoning and Master 
Plan for Greenhill Village defines medium density residential as 6-10 units an acre. This 
development is consistent with the adopted master plan, the intent of the MU district, and the 
City’s Future Land Use map.  
 
Note that Outlots A and B may not be developed until a separate Preliminary and Final Plat are 
reviewed and approved by the Commission and the City Council.  
 
Traffic Generation: At the last two Commission meetings, concern was expressed about 
the amount of traffic that might be generated by this development. The City Engineer’s 
Office notes that depending on the circumstances and corridor constraints, an urban 
two-lane roadway can handle capacities up to 1,000 vehicles per hour during peak times. 
As noted above, the proposed subdivision shows a detention basin in the place of one of 
the six unit townhome buildings shown in the concept plan. With this change, the 
proposed development at full build-out could have 34 townhome units. A townhome 
generates traffic similar to a single family home at approximately 7 trips per day per unit 
for a total of approximately 238 trips per day. With the new street connections proposed 
with this subdivision, multiple travel routes (Norse Drive, Lloyd Lane, Addison Drive, and 
the proposed Loren Drive) will be provided to nearby arterial and collector streets. 
Therefore, traffic generated by this development will not exceed the capacity of the 
existing streets. City staff will continue to monitor traffic volumes throughout the 
neighborhood and will make improvements as necessary. 
 
TECHNICAL COMMENTS 
City technical staff, including Cedar Falls Utilities (CFU) personnel, has reviewed the proposed 
Preliminary Plat. All technical comments have been addressed.  

Basic platting documents have been submitted including plats and platting fee ($300). A drafted 
Deed of Dedication, Attorney’s Title Opinion, and Surveyor’s Certificate have all been submitted.  
 
The property is located outside of the designated floodplain. A courtesy notice to adjoining 
property owners for this Preliminary Plat was mailed on January 16, 2019. A second courtesy 
notice was sent to a larger area on February 4, 2019. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
The proposed Greenhill Village Townhomes II Preliminary Plat is consistent with the zoning, the 
adopted master plan for this area, and meets the standards of the City’s subdivision code.  
Therefore, the Planning & Zoning Commission and City Staff recommend approval of the 
proposed Preliminary Plat. The Preliminary Plat is an intermediate step in the development 
process.  Approval of a Final Plat and a Site Plan will be required before development can 
proceed.  
 
PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION 
Discussion 
1/23/2019 

Chair Oberle introduced the item and Ms. Lehmann provided background 
information. She explained that Panther Farms LLC is proposing to subdivide 5.3 
acres of land southeast of the Greenhill and Hudson Road intersection. She 
displayed the approved concept plan tied to this location and explained that the 

272



area is considered medium density residential. The proposed Subdivision Plat is 
consistent with the concept plan. The proposal consists of one developable lot 
(Lot 1), tracts for future streets and stormwater basins, and two outlots as 
placeholders for future development. She discussed the proposed detention 
basin and the flow of the runoff, sidewalks, and a private alley that will service 
Lot 1. Utilities are available to the site. Ms. Lehmann noted that another 
Preliminary and Final Plat will be required before the two outlots can be 
developed. Staff recommends gathering comments from the Commission at this 
time and continuing discussion at the next Planning and Zoning meeting. 
 
Mr. Wingert recused himself due to a conflict of interest. 
 
James Denny, 4622 Hudson Road, stated that the area was supposed to be 
buffered with single-family houses and explained his concerns with traffic and 
safety issues that this higher density development would bring. He claimed to 
have been unaware of the Master Plan update that occurred in the spring of last 
year.  
 
Tim Hanson, 1517 Athens Court, noted his concerns of decreasing property 
values and water runoff issues. He also noted that this was the first time he was 
made aware of higher density development being allowed in this area. 
 
Ms. Lehmann noted that staff has looked into the water runoff issues and noted 
that at full-build-out there will be two detention basins that will serve the site. The 
site will be graded so that stormwater will flow toward the new stormwater basins 
and not on to neighboring properties. 
 
Mr. Leeper asked if traffic concerns had been looked into. Ms. Lehmann said that 
staff would look into it. 
 
The item will continue to the next meeting. 
 

Discussion 
2/13/2019 

Chair Oberle introduced the item and noted additional correspondence received 
from the public. Ms. Lehmann provided background information, explaining that 
Panther Farms LLC is proposing to subdivide 5.3 acres of land near the 
southeast corner of the Greenhill and Hudson Road intersection. She noted that 
staff has been made aware that there is general confusion about the project and 
its background. She discussed the history from the beginning in 1994, starting 
with the rezoning, explaining that there was an error in the information on the 
county website. She discussed the original master plan that was approved in 
1998 and an amended master plan created in 2003. In 2018 a request was 
submitted to allow for a multi-unit residential development that included a corner 
for commercial development. She provided an explanation of staff’s decision to 
support the request as well as detailed information regarding the proposed plan. 
She also provided details on the notifications for this project.  
  
Ms. Lehmann explained that there were concerns expressed with the traffic flow 
that this new development would create. She provided information to show that 
the surrounding streets are designed to handle the anticipated traffic from this 
development. New street connections will help to distribute the traffic and provide 

273



additional routes for the neighborhood. She also described how parking would be 
provided for the proposed townhomes, with access to two-car garages from rear 
alleys, which will maintain the entire street frontage for additional on-street 
parking, if needed.  This design will create more parking than would be provided 
with development where there are multiple driveways that reduce the possibility 
for on-street parking.  Staff recommends approval of the proposed preliminary 
plat, subject to the resolution of the technical comments, including: 
 

 Deed of Dedication to be finalized with the Final Plat 

 Expansion of the utility easement on the west side of Outlot A to 20’ 

 Updating the legal description by replacing “Greenhill Village” with 
“Greenhill Village Second Addition” 

 
Steve Troskey, planner with CGA Engineer, representing the developer, 
presented the project. He explained that there will be two buildings with a total of 
nine townhome units. At full buildout for the entire site there will be seven 
buildings with 34 units. The units are three-story houses, with three bedrooms, 
an office and two enclosed parking spaces. He noted that they would be built to 
single-family standards.  
 
Chris Noland, 1510 Athens Court, stated that neither his neighbors nor he recall 
getting a letter in 2018 when the change to the master plan was first discussed. 
He also expressed concerns that the zoning was incorrect on the Black Hawk 
County website and had not been changed. Mr. Nolan asked Mr. Wingert about 
the potential number of units and Mr. Wingert stated that he could not discuss 
the matter as he is abstaining from the item. Mr. Nolan stated that he is firmly 
against the project.  
 
Tim Tjarks, 1521 Athens Court, stated his residence is directly beside the future 
development. He reiterated his support for Mr. Nolan’s comments and that he is 
opposed to the project. 
 
James Denny, 4622 Hudson Road, stated his opposition to the project and his 
concerns about the notifications. He would like to see this deferred until they 
have the opportunity to discuss it further. 
 
Nalin Goonesekere, 1518 Athens Court, stated that he feels that residents were 
not given notification and were not allowed due process.  
 
Jessica Vickers, 1531 Andover Court, stated her concern with the additional 
traffic. 
 
Robin Frost, 4718 Addison Drive, stated her concern with the proposed plans 
and would like for the process to go back to the beginning to give the 
neighborhood a chance for discussion. 
 
Karmen Woelber, 4808 Algonquin Drive, Unit 6, lives in the townhomes to the 
north of this proposed development and has been surprised how many units end 
up being rentals for college students. She believes it has made a change to the 

274



feel of the neighborhood. 
 
Mr. Troskey addressed some of the concerns raised by the neighbors. He noted 
that these units will be designed similar to single family homes, with the only 
difference being that they share a wall with the neighboring units.  He stated that 
the developer plans to market these homes for sale. He also noted that at this 
time the focus is just on the first phase with the two buildings.  
 
Ms. Howard reiterated that at this time the discussion is just in regard to the 
proposed preliminary plat. The site plan will be the next discussion. 
 
Ms. Oberle asked staff about notification requirements. Ms. Howard stated that 
there is a legal requirement to send notification on any rezonings, and this was 
done in 1998. Subsequent changes to the master plan do not require notification, 
but the city does notify surrounding properties as good practice, but it is not a 
legal requirement. She stated that city records indicate that a mailing to 
surrounding properties was sent prior to the change to the master plan, as 
described by Ms. Lehmann. Ms. Saul asked about the small area (300 ft. from 
property) that the notifications are required to be sent to. Ms. Lehmann stated 
that the City increased that area for the mailings for the master plan update to 
ensure more of the neighborhood was aware of the project. 
 
Mr. Holst stated that he doesn’t feel comfortable moving forward with something 
until the community has a chance to voice their opinions. Ms. Giarusso stated 
her concern that the county website has had incorrect information for 20 years. 
Ms. Saul asked what the process would be to go back to discuss the Master Plan 
amendment. Mr. Larson stated that the matter at hand was not a change to the 
master plan, but consideration of a plat. Ms. Howard confirmed that the change 
to the master plan has already been adopted by the City Council and the City 
Council would have to approve any change to the currently adopted master plan 
and the regular process must be followed for any change. She reiterated that 
while it is unfortunate that the neighbors feel that there was not adequate notice 
about the change to the master plan, the Commission must consider the 
application before them, which is a preliminary plat, and that it must be 
considered according to the currently adopted master plan and the City 
subdivision standards.  
 
Mr. Holst asked if the developer would consider modifying the plan. He stated his 
concern with the communication issues.  
  
Mr. Hartley made a motion to defer the matter to the February 27th meeting. Ms. 
Adkins seconded the motion. The motion was approved with 7 ayes (Adkins, 
Giarusso, Hartley, Holst, Larson, Oberle, and Saul), 1 abstention (Wingert) and 0 
nays. 
 

Discussion 
and Vote 
2/27/2019 

Mr. Holst introduced the item. Ms. Howard reviewed the role of the Planning and 
Zoning Commission. She noted that the Commission does not have the authority 
to amend the master plan for Greenhill Village that was adopted by resolution of 
the City Council in April of 2018. She also noted that only the owner of the 
property in question or the City Council has the authority to petition for a change 

275



to the master plan. If such a petition is made, only then can it be placed on the 
Commission agenda for consideration.  
 
Ms. Lehmann stated that additional correspondence has been received from the 
public and that these correspondences have been shared with the Commission 
and will be filed as part of the public record. Ms. Lehmann then provided 
background information on the project, explaining that Panther Farms LLC is 
proposing to subdivide 5.3 acres of land near the southeast corner of the 
Greenhill and Hudson Road intersection. Ms. Lehmann went through much of 
the same background that was presented at the February 13th Planning and 
Zoning Commission meeting. Ms. Lehmann also provided further analysis on the 
intent of the MU district and the history of the Master Plan updates. She 
explained that the intent of this district is for a mixture of housing densities and 
that other medium to high density developments were already part of the 2003 
Master Plan update. She noted that the MU district code specifically states that 
the majority of the development and developable land within the district should 
be dedicated to uses other than detached single family residential development. 
She clarified that this proposed development at 6.4 units an acre falls on the 
lower end of the Medium density residential scale (defined as 6-10 units an acre 
by the original 1998 rezoning).  
 
There was further discussion on the mailings that were sent for the Master Plan 
amendment in 2018. Residents continue to claim that they never received the 
courtesy letter that the city sent. Residents reiterated their concerns and 
objections to the project from the February 13th Planning and Zoning 
Commission meeting. 
 
Mr. Holst reminded the public in attendance that the Planning and Zoning 
Commission does not have the authority to act on the previously approved 
amendment to the Master Plan at this time. He urged those in attendance to 
attend the City Council meeting where the issue of the master plan could be 
further discussed. After discussing the project, the Planning and Zoning 
Commission agreed that the proposed Greenhill Village Townhomes II 
Preliminary Plat is consistent with the zoning, the adopted master plan for this 
area, and meets the standards of the City’s subdivision code.  The Commission 
unanimously approved the recommendation for City Council to approve the 
Greenhill Village Preliminary Plat.  

 
Attachments: Greenhill Village Master Plan  
  Preliminary Plat  
  Drafted Deed of Dedication  
  Written correspondence  

276



277



278



279



280



281



282



283



284



285



286



Dear Planning and Zoning Committee,

My name is Michele Hanson, my family and I have lived at 1517 Athens Ct. in Greenhill
Village for nine years. My children have grown up here, rode their bikes through the
neighborhood, and we have enjoyed living here with our neighbors, so you can imagine
our shock and dismay at the note we received January 17th inviting us to a meeting with
the Planning & Zoning on January 23rd. Not only was this short notice but this letter was
only sent out to only a small handful of neighbors with many that this will affect not
receiving this letter at all. The big shocker in all this is that the notice was to let us know
about a meeting scheduled to discuss the plan for the area directly behind our house to
be developed with townhomes! This is a huge punch in the gut shocker because this
land has always been in the plans to be developed into more "single family" homes! My
husband is the president of our HOA and at NO time did he, the HOA, nor anyone in
this neighborhood received any notice of any meetings prior to this stating that these
plans had changed and that this land had been rezoned from single family homes to
multifamily (Townhouse/apartments). In doing our research, and with the help of Shane
Graham it was brought to our neighborhood associations attention that meetings were
held on March 28 (P & Z) to ask for this property to be amended with density of town-
homes and then on April 16 (City Council resolution #21,071) which approved this
request! These meetings were held WITHOUT any of us in Greenhill Village ever being
notified! I believe this takes away our rights to attend and share our thoughts on what
happens in "OUR" neighborhood!

From the meeting minutes :( Mr. Holst verified that notifications were sent to the
neighbors.)
Did it not seem strange to all involved that not one homeowner from GV was there to

object to this idea or share their concerns? That's because you took away our rights
which we will share with the lawyer we have retain this to represent Greenhill Village in
this matter.

We ask for your help and fairness in this matter!

I sent out a questioner on our GV website to the neighbors that were supposedly sent
the notice back on 3/19/18 and NOT ONE received this letter! It is highly unlikely that
this many letters just happen to be lost in the mail. These notices were never sent! We
are asking that the amendment made to this property from single family homes to multi-
family units on April 16, when it was unanimously voted upon be the city council again
without any notice to GV families be reversed!
Send out notices this time and follow the correct protocol that is put in place for a

reason that allows homeowners to express their concerns when it comes to their
neighborhood!

287



These are some of the concerns that our HOA and surrounding neighbors have with this
plan:

 DENSITY of multi-family units vs single family homes in this neighborhood. We
have seen the plans of 40 units / 8 complexes in the area starting with the two in
the northwest corner.

 TRAFFIC getting onto Greenhill Road has been a concern for some time and is
near impossible at Ashworth and Hudson turning south. Many neighbors choose
to drive to Erik and Hudson which increases the neighborhood traffic and that will
only be increased with Addison being extended and traffic going from Harriet and
Hudson turning south.

 RUNOFF while yes you have plans for a retention pond, our neighborhood ponds
have overflowed this past year alone due to heavy rains and what are the plans
for this pond? It will flood and run into the neighboring yards of those who's
backyards are on Addison and Ashworth and this area is a wet land area that
already has standing water in it at any given time.

 BUFFER/PRIVACY the area that is in the plans to be densified by these multi-
family homes (40 units/8 complexes) is an extreme density in one area without
sufficient buffer between single family homes and multi-unit buildings. The fact
that 3 story townhouse will be looking into our ranch home is an invasion of our
privacy! The fact that the driveway to one of these units will be directly
perpendicular to our yard which means that the lights from the vehicles will be
shining directly into our house!

 PROPERTY VALUE we all know this will bring revenue through taxes but what
about the value of our homes? We all know this answer!

.

Respectfully,

Michele Hanson

288



From:                              Robin Frost <frostrr@gmail.com>
Sent:                               Monday, January 28, 2019 8:39 PM
To:                                   Iris Lehmann
Subject:                          Greenhill Village Townhomes II
 
Follow Up Flag:              Follow up
Flag Status:                     Completed
 
Dear Ms. Lehmann,
 
I am writing to express my concern at the total lack of communication the Greenhill Village
neighborhood has received about the change in the bordering property development. As residents of the
Greenhill Village neighborhood, we have not received ANY communication from the City of Cedar Falls
about the amendment to the master plan and proposed development adjacent to our homes.  The first my
husband and I learned of the issue was a Facebook post by a fellow resident to the Greenhill Village
Facebook Group on January 23 at 4:54 p.m., approximately one hour prior to the Planning & Zoning
Committee meeting.  As I did not see the message until much later, I was unable to attend the meeting
that evening.  
 
Upon reviewing the memorandum in the Community Development packet, I was disturbed to learn there
had been an amendment to the Greenhill Village master plan last April (2018) to allow the area to be
developed as townhomes rather than the original intention of singlefamily homes.  I was further
disturbed that neither my household, nor any of the neighbors, had received communication about the
meeting or potential change prior to last April’s decision.  I have heard indirectly that the city’s records
show it sent notices about such a meeting.  However, my own records (along with all of my neighbors’)
show that no such letter was received.  
 
I assure you that as a new resident to Greenhill Village (as of December 2017) I was hyperaware that
development may be possible nearby, so I would have been vigilant about any communication that came
from the city about this subject.    
 
Furthermore, we did not receive a notice of the Planning & Zoning meeting on Jan. 23 where the
proposed development was discussed, nor was the Greenhill Village Homeowners’ Association notified. 
If the Homeowners’ Association had received notice, the subject certainly would have been on the
agenda for the annual HOA meeting which took place on Jan. 21, just two days prior to the Planning &
Zoning meeting. 
 
Not only am I dismayed at the total lack of communication from the City, but also at the proposed plan
and its rapid progression through the development process.  It is disturbing to read a plan that the
neighborhood had no part in developing or influencing, and realize how far along the proposed
development is in the process.  As I read the recommendations and technical comments from the City
technical staff and CFU, it appears that commencing development is imminent and inevitable.  I am
appalled that the City would allow this process to continue without following the proper channels, and
with the  knowledge that none of the neighborhood residents received the required written
communication.
 
As you may know, adding rental units to a neighborhood can reduce nearby property values by 13.8%
(American Community Survey) by reducing the desirability of the neighborhood due to safety and
aesthetic concerns.  Parking, water runoff, sewage and garbage are additional concerns, several of which
are not addressed in the development request.  Additionally, the City will want to consider the flooding

289



that occurred in the area on Labor Day 2018 when planning for drainage and runoff. Addison
Drive/Athens Court had several feet of water, which impacted the basements of many nearby homes
causing property damage (inside dwellings and to outdoor landscaping), insurance claims, and
complaints to the city. As this flood event had not yet occurred when the amendment was made to the
plan, surely this incident should be a factor for consideration and discussion by the city and any future
developer. 
 
I am proud to live in Cedar Falls, and specifically in Greenhill Village, but disappointed by the manner in
which this issue is being handled. I respectfully request a delay in this development request in order to
revisit the amendment which was made without the opportunity for neighborhood residents to weigh in,
research the impact and discuss with our neighbors. 
 
Thank you for your consideration,
 
Robin Frost
4718 Addison Drive
Cedar Falls
 
[NOTICE: This message originated outside of the City Of Cedar Falls mail system  DO NOT CLICK
on links or open attachments unless you are sure the content is safe.]

290



From:                              Vinod Phuke <vinodphuke@gmail.com>
Sent:                               Friday, February 01, 2019 11:34 AM
To:                                   Iris Lehmann
Subject:                          Raising concern 8‐4 Town homes recently approved by planning and zoning

department
 
Follow Up Flag:              Follow up
Flag Status:                     Flagged
 

Hello Iris,

 I would like to raise my concern related to 8‐4 Town homes recently approved by planning and
zoning department. This was originally planned for the single family homes,  this change will
negatively impact on living since these town homes will be rented to tenants and we are currently
facing lots of traffic and parking issues, this new plan will make things worse as a member of
Greenhill village family I would like to raise my concern and strongly oppose this new plan

Best regards

Vinod Phuke

1029 Amelia Dr Unit 1

Cedar Falls IA‐50613

319‐610‐8880

[NOTICE: This message originated outside of the City Of Cedar Falls mail system  DO NOT CLICK
on links or open attachments unless you are sure the content is safe.]

291



From:                                         Larry Durchenwald <ldurch@cfu.net>

Sent:                                           Tuesday, February 05, 2019 9:54 AM

To:                                               Iris Lehmann

Subject:                                     New townhouses at Greenhill Village

 

Members of Cedar Falls City Council;
My name is Larry Durchenwald, and my wife and I are current residents of 1525 Athens Ct. We are retired and
have been part of the neighborhood since June 2013. We enjoy the neighborhood and have gotten to appreciate
knowing our neighbors.
We are against the new townhouses in the area of Norse Drive, because that intersection onto Hudson Road is
very busy as it is, and additional, high density, occupancy, dwellings will create a traffic issue trying to enter
Hudson Road. Often, there is a line of cars waiting for the traffic light at the intersection of Greenhill Road and
Hudson road, so entering Hudson Road during those situations will be very frustrating.
It is not unusual to see cars going around that tight corner of Harriet Lane and Norse Drive on the inside of the
turn, no matter what direction they are going. Visibility in this corner is limited at best.
If this area is to be developed, we much prefer the addition of single family housing where properties will be
better cared for by actual property owners, rather than temporary renters. We feel, also, that townhouses this
close to our established neighborhood, will decrease the value of our homes.
Larry & Rita Durchenwald
1525 Athens Ct.
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613
[NOTICE: This message originated outside of the City Of Cedar Falls mail system  DO NOT CLICK
on links or open attachments unless you are sure the content is safe.]

292



From:                              Iris Lehmann
Sent:                               Monday, February 04, 2019 8:15 AM
To:                                   'Karmen Woelber'
Subject:                          RE: Greenhill Village area zoning
Attachments:                 Combined Staff Report ‐ Greenhill Villiage Townhomes.pdf
 
Good morning Karmen,
 
Thank you for your email. I just want to assure you that a zoning change for apartment buildings has not been
approved for this area nor is it being considered. The Planning and Zoning Commission will be considering the
proposal for one (1) four‐unit townhome building and one (1) five‐unit townhome building at their February 13th
Planning and Zoning Commission meeting. Townhomes are essentially single family units attached to one another
to create a multiple unit building of 4‐5 attached homes (much like duplexes). I attached for your reference the
staff report from the last discussion of this project on January 23, 2019. It is our understanding that the
developer intends to market these units as for sale.
 
Please feel free to contact me if you have any questions or if you still have any concerns with the proposal. Again
the Commission will be discussing this project at their next meeting on February 13th and public comment is
encouraged.
 
Kind regards,
 
Iris Lehmann, AICP
Planner II
City of Cedar Falls, Iowa
Phone: 319.268.5185
 
From: Karmen Woelber [mailto:karmen@cfu.net] 
Sent: Friday, February 01, 2019 9:15 PM
To: Iris Lehmann
Subject: Greenhill Village area zoning
 
Ms. Lehmann,
 
I live at 4808 Algonquin Dr. Unit 6. I have just been informed through my homeowner's
association that there are plans to change the zoning in the area in front of the water tower.
Plans to change it from single family dwelling zoning to apartment zoning. I have significant
concerns about the negative impact this change would have on our neighborhood and property
values.  I have also been told that the city states all residents in the area have been previously
informed of the anticipated change. I want to state very clearly that I have not received any
information at all regarding this issue. The first I new of it was from an email via my
homeowner's association that I received today.
 
Respectfully yours, 
Karmen Woelber
[NOTICE: This message originated outside of the City Of Cedar Falls mail system  DO NOT CLICK
on links or open attachments unless you are sure the content is safe.]

293



From:                              Iris Lehmann
Sent:                               Monday, February 04, 2019 8:19 AM
To:                                   'Dad'
Subject:                          RE:
Attachments:                 Combined Staff Report ‐ Greenhill Villiage Townhomes.pdf
 
Good morning Dean,
 
Thank you for your email. I just want to assure you that plans for “massive rental units” are not being considered.
The Planning and Zoning Commission will be considering the proposal for one (1) four‐unit townhome building
and one (1) five‐unit townhome building at their February 13th Planning and Zoning Commission meeting.
Townhomes are essentially single family units attached to one another to create a multiple unit building of 4‐5
attached homes (much like duplexes). I attached for your reference the staff report from the last discussion of
this project on January 23, 2019. It is our understanding that the developer intends to market these units as for
sale.
 
Please feel free to contact me if you have any questions or if you still have any concerns with the proposal. Again
the Commission will be discussing this project at their next meeting on February 13th and public comment is
encouraged.
 
Kind regards,
 
Iris Lehmann, AICP
Planner II
City of Cedar Falls, Iowa
Phone: 319.268.5185
 
From: Dad [mailto:dlb51111@juno.com] 
Sent: Friday, February 01, 2019 5:09 PM
To: Iris Lehmann
Subject:
 
Iris, I have just been informed of the proposed building of massive rental units close to where i live. The
City of CF is claiming all homeowners close to that area were notified, This is false. I was never notified
of such a proposition and am completely against such. The building of so many RENTAL units will no
doubt decrease the value of all homes any where near that area and the traffic would be unmanageable.
Also the turnover in such units is very high and would be a detriment to all homeowners around there.
Please do whatever you can to stop this catastrophe from going forward.
 
Thank you.
Dean Boyd
1315 Amelia Dr.

____________________________________________________________
Drink 1 Cup Before Bed, Watch Your Body Fat Melt Like Crazy
Celebrity Local
http://thirdpartyoffers.juno.com/TGL3132/5c54d1a1abad751a168b4st04vuc

294



[NOTICE: This message originated outside of the City Of Cedar Falls mail system  DO
NOT CLICK on links or open attachments unless you are sure the content is safe.]

295



From:                                         Iris Lehmann
Sent:                                           Friday, February 01, 2019 3:41 PM
To:                                               'Diane Lantz'
Subject:                                     RE: Greenhill Village Apartment Project
Attachments:                          Combined Staff Report ‐ Greenhill Villiage Townhomes.pdf
 
Hi Diane,
 
Thank you for your email. I just want to assure you that plans for high rise apartment buildings have not been
approved. The Planning and Zoning Commission will be considering the proposal for one (1) four‐unit townhome
building and one (1) five‐unit townhome building at their February 13th Planning and Zoning Commission
meeting. Townhomes are essentially single family units attached to one another to create a multiple unit building
of 4‐5 attached homes (much like duplexes). I attached for your reference the staff report from the last
discussion of this project on January 23, 2019. It is our understanding that the developer intends to market these
units as for sale.
 
Please feel free to contact me if you have any questions or if you still have any concerns with the proposal. Again
the Commission will be discussing this project at their next meeting on February 13th and public comment is
encouraged.
 
Kind regards,
 
Iris Lehmann, AICP
Planner II
City of Cedar Falls, Iowa
Phone: 319.268.5185
 
‐‐‐‐‐Original Message‐‐‐‐‐
From: Diane Lantz [mailto:dlantz1216@yahoo.com]
Sent: Friday, February 01, 2019 3:11 PM
To: Iris Lehmann
Subject: Greenhill Village Apartment Project
 
I just recently learned of plans to build eight apartment buildings near the UNI water tower in Greenhill Village. 
No notice has even been given to the homeowners of this area.
 
As a residence of Greenhill Village, I’m writing to adamantly oppose this project.  When purchasing my home I
believed it to be a neighborhood of privately owned homes and condos. Not a neighborhood of high rise
apartment buildings that will without a doubt lower the value of our properties and overpopulate this area.
Traffic has already increased significantly due to the number of apartment buildings at the corner of Greenhill
and Ashworth.  This will only add to what already is a disappointing  and sometimes dangerous situation.
 
The City of Cedar Falls needs to listen to the people of this neighborhood who have invested their money and
made their home in a family‐oriented neighborhood not suspecting for a minute that it could become a college
student community.
 
Sincerely,
 
Diane Lantz
Greenhill Village 296



 
Sent from my iPhone
 
[NOTICE: This message originated outside of the City Of Cedar Falls mail system ‐‐ DO NOT CLICK on links or open
attachments unless you are sure the content is safe.]

297



298



299



Dear Planning and Zoning Committee,

My name is Michele Hanson, my family and I have lived at 1517 Athens Ct. in Greenhill
Village for nine years. My children have grown up here, rode their bikes through the
neighborhood, and we have enjoyed living here with our neighbors, so you can imagine
our shock and dismay at the note we received January 17th inviting us to a meeting with
the Planning & Zoning on January 23rd. Not only was this short notice but this letter was
only sent out to only a small handful of neighbors with many that this will affect not
receiving this letter at all. The big shocker in all this is that the notice was to let us know
about a meeting scheduled to discuss the plan for the area directly behind our house to
be developed with townhomes! This is a huge punch in the gut shocker because this
land has always been in the plans to be developed into more "single family" homes! My
husband is the president of our HOA and at NO time did he, the HOA, nor anyone in
this neighborhood received any notice of any meetings prior to this stating that these
plans had changed and that this land had been rezoned from single family homes to
multifamily (Townhouse/apartments). In doing our research, and with the help of Shane
Graham it was brought to our neighborhood associations attention that meetings were
held on March 28 (P & Z) to ask for this property to be amended with density of town-
homes and then on April 16 (City Council resolution #21,071) which approved this
request! These meetings were held WITHOUT any of us in Greenhill Village ever being
notified! I believe this takes away our rights to attend and share our thoughts on what
happens in "OUR" neighborhood!

From the meeting minutes :( Mr. Holst verified that notifications were sent to the
neighbors.)
Did it not seem strange to all involved that not one homeowner from GV was there to

object to this idea or share their concerns? That's because you took away our rights
which we will share with the lawyer we have retain this to represent Greenhill Village in
this matter.

We ask for your help and fairness in this matter!

I sent out a questioner on our GV website to the neighbors that were supposedly sent
the notice back on 3/19/18 and NOT ONE received this letter! It is highly unlikely that
this many letters just happen to be lost in the mail. These notices were never sent! We
are asking that the amendment made to this property from single family homes to multi-
family units on April 16, when it was unanimously voted upon be the city council again
without any notice to GV families be reversed!
Send out notices this time and follow the correct protocol that is put in place for a

reason that allows homeowners to express their concerns when it comes to their
neighborhood!

300



These are some of the concerns that our HOA and surrounding neighbors have with this
plan:

 DENSITY of multi-family units vs single family homes in this neighborhood. We
have seen the plans of 40 units / 8 complexes in the area starting with the two in
the northwest corner.

 TRAFFIC getting onto Greenhill Road has been a concern for some time and is
near impossible at Ashworth and Hudson turning south. Many neighbors choose
to drive to Erik and Hudson which increases the neighborhood traffic and that will
only be increased with Addison being extended and traffic going from Harriet and
Hudson turning south.

 RUNOFF while yes you have plans for a retention pond, our neighborhood ponds
have overflowed this past year alone due to heavy rains and what are the plans
for this pond? It will flood and run into the neighboring yards of those who's
backyards are on Addison and Ashworth and this area is a wet land area that
already has standing water in it at any given time.

 BUFFER/PRIVACY the area that is in the plans to be densified by these multi-
family homes (40 units/8 complexes) is an extreme density in one area without
sufficient buffer between single family homes and multi-unit buildings. The fact
that 3 story townhouse will be looking into our ranch home is an invasion of our
privacy! The fact that the driveway to one of these units will be directly
perpendicular to our yard which means that the lights from the vehicles will be
shining directly into our house!

 PROPERTY VALUE we all know this will bring revenue through taxes but what
about the value of our homes? We all know this answer!

.

Respectfully,

Michele Hanson

301



From:                              Robin Frost <frostrr@gmail.com>
Sent:                               Monday, January 28, 2019 8:39 PM
To:                                   Iris Lehmann
Subject:                          Greenhill Village Townhomes II
 
Follow Up Flag:              Follow up
Flag Status:                     Completed
 
Dear Ms. Lehmann,
 
I am writing to express my concern at the total lack of communication the Greenhill Village
neighborhood has received about the change in the bordering property development. As residents of the
Greenhill Village neighborhood, we have not received ANY communication from the City of Cedar Falls
about the amendment to the master plan and proposed development adjacent to our homes.  The first my
husband and I learned of the issue was a Facebook post by a fellow resident to the Greenhill Village
Facebook Group on January 23 at 4:54 p.m., approximately one hour prior to the Planning & Zoning
Committee meeting.  As I did not see the message until much later, I was unable to attend the meeting
that evening.  
 
Upon reviewing the memorandum in the Community Development packet, I was disturbed to learn there
had been an amendment to the Greenhill Village master plan last April (2018) to allow the area to be
developed as townhomes rather than the original intention of singlefamily homes.  I was further
disturbed that neither my household, nor any of the neighbors, had received communication about the
meeting or potential change prior to last April’s decision.  I have heard indirectly that the city’s records
show it sent notices about such a meeting.  However, my own records (along with all of my neighbors’)
show that no such letter was received.  
 
I assure you that as a new resident to Greenhill Village (as of December 2017) I was hyperaware that
development may be possible nearby, so I would have been vigilant about any communication that came
from the city about this subject.    
 
Furthermore, we did not receive a notice of the Planning & Zoning meeting on Jan. 23 where the
proposed development was discussed, nor was the Greenhill Village Homeowners’ Association notified. 
If the Homeowners’ Association had received notice, the subject certainly would have been on the
agenda for the annual HOA meeting which took place on Jan. 21, just two days prior to the Planning &
Zoning meeting. 
 
Not only am I dismayed at the total lack of communication from the City, but also at the proposed plan
and its rapid progression through the development process.  It is disturbing to read a plan that the
neighborhood had no part in developing or influencing, and realize how far along the proposed
development is in the process.  As I read the recommendations and technical comments from the City
technical staff and CFU, it appears that commencing development is imminent and inevitable.  I am
appalled that the City would allow this process to continue without following the proper channels, and
with the  knowledge that none of the neighborhood residents received the required written
communication.
 
As you may know, adding rental units to a neighborhood can reduce nearby property values by 13.8%
(American Community Survey) by reducing the desirability of the neighborhood due to safety and
aesthetic concerns.  Parking, water runoff, sewage and garbage are additional concerns, several of which
are not addressed in the development request.  Additionally, the City will want to consider the flooding

302



that occurred in the area on Labor Day 2018 when planning for drainage and runoff. Addison
Drive/Athens Court had several feet of water, which impacted the basements of many nearby homes
causing property damage (inside dwellings and to outdoor landscaping), insurance claims, and
complaints to the city. As this flood event had not yet occurred when the amendment was made to the
plan, surely this incident should be a factor for consideration and discussion by the city and any future
developer. 
 
I am proud to live in Cedar Falls, and specifically in Greenhill Village, but disappointed by the manner in
which this issue is being handled. I respectfully request a delay in this development request in order to
revisit the amendment which was made without the opportunity for neighborhood residents to weigh in,
research the impact and discuss with our neighbors. 
 
Thank you for your consideration,
 
Robin Frost
4718 Addison Drive
Cedar Falls
 
[NOTICE: This message originated outside of the City Of Cedar Falls mail system  DO NOT CLICK
on links or open attachments unless you are sure the content is safe.]

303



From:                              Vinod Phuke <vinodphuke@gmail.com>
Sent:                               Friday, February 01, 2019 11:34 AM
To:                                   Iris Lehmann
Subject:                          Raising concern 8‐4 Town homes recently approved by planning and zoning

department
 
Follow Up Flag:              Follow up
Flag Status:                     Flagged
 

Hello Iris,

 I would like to raise my concern related to 8‐4 Town homes recently approved by planning and
zoning department. This was originally planned for the single family homes,  this change will
negatively impact on living since these town homes will be rented to tenants and we are currently
facing lots of traffic and parking issues, this new plan will make things worse as a member of
Greenhill village family I would like to raise my concern and strongly oppose this new plan

Best regards

Vinod Phuke

1029 Amelia Dr Unit 1

Cedar Falls IA‐50613

319‐610‐8880

[NOTICE: This message originated outside of the City Of Cedar Falls mail system  DO NOT CLICK
on links or open attachments unless you are sure the content is safe.]

304



From:                                         Larry Durchenwald <ldurch@cfu.net>

Sent:                                           Tuesday, February 05, 2019 9:54 AM

To:                                               Iris Lehmann

Subject:                                     New townhouses at Greenhill Village

 

Members of Cedar Falls City Council;
My name is Larry Durchenwald, and my wife and I are current residents of 1525 Athens Ct. We are retired and
have been part of the neighborhood since June 2013. We enjoy the neighborhood and have gotten to appreciate
knowing our neighbors.
We are against the new townhouses in the area of Norse Drive, because that intersection onto Hudson Road is
very busy as it is, and additional, high density, occupancy, dwellings will create a traffic issue trying to enter
Hudson Road. Often, there is a line of cars waiting for the traffic light at the intersection of Greenhill Road and
Hudson road, so entering Hudson Road during those situations will be very frustrating.
It is not unusual to see cars going around that tight corner of Harriet Lane and Norse Drive on the inside of the
turn, no matter what direction they are going. Visibility in this corner is limited at best.
If this area is to be developed, we much prefer the addition of single family housing where properties will be
better cared for by actual property owners, rather than temporary renters. We feel, also, that townhouses this
close to our established neighborhood, will decrease the value of our homes.
Larry & Rita Durchenwald
1525 Athens Ct.
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613
[NOTICE: This message originated outside of the City Of Cedar Falls mail system  DO NOT CLICK
on links or open attachments unless you are sure the content is safe.]

305



From:                              Iris Lehmann
Sent:                               Monday, February 04, 2019 8:15 AM
To:                                   'Karmen Woelber'
Subject:                          RE: Greenhill Village area zoning
Attachments:                 Combined Staff Report ‐ Greenhill Villiage Townhomes.pdf
 
Good morning Karmen,
 
Thank you for your email. I just want to assure you that a zoning change for apartment buildings has not been
approved for this area nor is it being considered. The Planning and Zoning Commission will be considering the
proposal for one (1) four‐unit townhome building and one (1) five‐unit townhome building at their February 13th
Planning and Zoning Commission meeting. Townhomes are essentially single family units attached to one another
to create a multiple unit building of 4‐5 attached homes (much like duplexes). I attached for your reference the
staff report from the last discussion of this project on January 23, 2019. It is our understanding that the
developer intends to market these units as for sale.
 
Please feel free to contact me if you have any questions or if you still have any concerns with the proposal. Again
the Commission will be discussing this project at their next meeting on February 13th and public comment is
encouraged.
 
Kind regards,
 
Iris Lehmann, AICP
Planner II
City of Cedar Falls, Iowa
Phone: 319.268.5185
 
From: Karmen Woelber [mailto:karmen@cfu.net] 
Sent: Friday, February 01, 2019 9:15 PM
To: Iris Lehmann
Subject: Greenhill Village area zoning
 
Ms. Lehmann,
 
I live at 4808 Algonquin Dr. Unit 6. I have just been informed through my homeowner's
association that there are plans to change the zoning in the area in front of the water tower.
Plans to change it from single family dwelling zoning to apartment zoning. I have significant
concerns about the negative impact this change would have on our neighborhood and property
values.  I have also been told that the city states all residents in the area have been previously
informed of the anticipated change. I want to state very clearly that I have not received any
information at all regarding this issue. The first I new of it was from an email via my
homeowner's association that I received today.
 
Respectfully yours, 
Karmen Woelber
[NOTICE: This message originated outside of the City Of Cedar Falls mail system  DO NOT CLICK
on links or open attachments unless you are sure the content is safe.]

306



From:                              Iris Lehmann
Sent:                               Monday, February 04, 2019 8:19 AM
To:                                   'Dad'
Subject:                          RE:
Attachments:                 Combined Staff Report ‐ Greenhill Villiage Townhomes.pdf
 
Good morning Dean,
 
Thank you for your email. I just want to assure you that plans for “massive rental units” are not being considered.
The Planning and Zoning Commission will be considering the proposal for one (1) four‐unit townhome building
and one (1) five‐unit townhome building at their February 13th Planning and Zoning Commission meeting.
Townhomes are essentially single family units attached to one another to create a multiple unit building of 4‐5
attached homes (much like duplexes). I attached for your reference the staff report from the last discussion of
this project on January 23, 2019. It is our understanding that the developer intends to market these units as for
sale.
 
Please feel free to contact me if you have any questions or if you still have any concerns with the proposal. Again
the Commission will be discussing this project at their next meeting on February 13th and public comment is
encouraged.
 
Kind regards,
 
Iris Lehmann, AICP
Planner II
City of Cedar Falls, Iowa
Phone: 319.268.5185
 
From: Dad [mailto:dlb51111@juno.com] 
Sent: Friday, February 01, 2019 5:09 PM
To: Iris Lehmann
Subject:
 
Iris, I have just been informed of the proposed building of massive rental units close to where i live. The
City of CF is claiming all homeowners close to that area were notified, This is false. I was never notified
of such a proposition and am completely against such. The building of so many RENTAL units will no
doubt decrease the value of all homes any where near that area and the traffic would be unmanageable.
Also the turnover in such units is very high and would be a detriment to all homeowners around there.
Please do whatever you can to stop this catastrophe from going forward.
 
Thank you.
Dean Boyd
1315 Amelia Dr.

____________________________________________________________
Drink 1 Cup Before Bed, Watch Your Body Fat Melt Like Crazy
Celebrity Local
http://thirdpartyoffers.juno.com/TGL3132/5c54d1a1abad751a168b4st04vuc

307



[NOTICE: This message originated outside of the City Of Cedar Falls mail system  DO
NOT CLICK on links or open attachments unless you are sure the content is safe.]

308



From:                                         Iris Lehmann
Sent:                                           Friday, February 01, 2019 3:41 PM
To:                                               'Diane Lantz'
Subject:                                     RE: Greenhill Village Apartment Project
Attachments:                          Combined Staff Report ‐ Greenhill Villiage Townhomes.pdf
 
Hi Diane,
 
Thank you for your email. I just want to assure you that plans for high rise apartment buildings have not been
approved. The Planning and Zoning Commission will be considering the proposal for one (1) four‐unit townhome
building and one (1) five‐unit townhome building at their February 13th Planning and Zoning Commission
meeting. Townhomes are essentially single family units attached to one another to create a multiple unit building
of 4‐5 attached homes (much like duplexes). I attached for your reference the staff report from the last
discussion of this project on January 23, 2019. It is our understanding that the developer intends to market these
units as for sale.
 
Please feel free to contact me if you have any questions or if you still have any concerns with the proposal. Again
the Commission will be discussing this project at their next meeting on February 13th and public comment is
encouraged.
 
Kind regards,
 
Iris Lehmann, AICP
Planner II
City of Cedar Falls, Iowa
Phone: 319.268.5185
 
‐‐‐‐‐Original Message‐‐‐‐‐
From: Diane Lantz [mailto:dlantz1216@yahoo.com]
Sent: Friday, February 01, 2019 3:11 PM
To: Iris Lehmann
Subject: Greenhill Village Apartment Project
 
I just recently learned of plans to build eight apartment buildings near the UNI water tower in Greenhill Village. 
No notice has even been given to the homeowners of this area.
 
As a residence of Greenhill Village, I’m writing to adamantly oppose this project.  When purchasing my home I
believed it to be a neighborhood of privately owned homes and condos. Not a neighborhood of high rise
apartment buildings that will without a doubt lower the value of our properties and overpopulate this area.
Traffic has already increased significantly due to the number of apartment buildings at the corner of Greenhill
and Ashworth.  This will only add to what already is a disappointing  and sometimes dangerous situation.
 
The City of Cedar Falls needs to listen to the people of this neighborhood who have invested their money and
made their home in a family‐oriented neighborhood not suspecting for a minute that it could become a college
student community.
 
Sincerely,
 
Diane Lantz
Greenhill Village 309



 
Sent from my iPhone
 
[NOTICE: This message originated outside of the City Of Cedar Falls mail system ‐‐ DO NOT CLICK on links or open
attachments unless you are sure the content is safe.]

310



From:                              Karen Howard
Sent:                               Wednesday, February 27, 2019 4:57 PM
To:                                   Iris Lehmann
Subject:                          FW: Planning & Zoning committee decision in Greenhill village
 
Another one…
 
From: Alok Pandey [mailto:alok18880@gmail.com] 
Sent: Wednesday, February 27, 2019 4:19 PM
To: Karen Howard; David A. Wieland; Rob Green; Frank Darrah; Tom Blanford; Daryl Kruse; Susan deBuhr; Mark
Miller
Cc: ayushi purohit
Subject: Planning & Zoning committee decision in Greenhill village
 
Hello,
 
This is regarding Cedar Falls Planning and Zoning commission recommendation
to the City Council on increasing allowable residential density at the southwest
corner of Lloyd Lane and Addison Drive and by the water tower.
As me and my family understood, this change means it will be permissible to build
townhomes in this area rather than the “singlefamily homes” that were
originally planned.
 
We have learned recently about the Planning & zoning meeting in March 2018
where the increased density was discussed and approved.
We want to bring to your notice that we did not receive the mailing in this
regard and are feeling neglected.
We have attended the last Planning & zoning meeting on February 13th 2019 and
expressed our anguish towards this decision and being left out of this process.
 
My home is just across the street from this area on Addison Drive and is directly
affected with this decision.
This area is already facing water runoff issues and have seen flooding on my
neighbor’s basement.
Also, we are already facing traffic issues on Ashworth Drive and this change will
add to those chaos by diverting traffic running north/south to/from Hudson road
onto Addison drive.
This development will cause tremendous traffic increases throughout the
neighborhood and will affect the living in this area.
As new multifamily townhomes will directly face the single homes, we will lose
privacy and our kids will not feel safe to play outside in our own backyard along
with losing the value of our homes.
 
We hereby request you to please reconsider this decision and reinstate the decision
to build quality single family homes in this area.
 
I am planning to attend today’s Planning & Zoning meeting at the City hall and look
forward to interact with you. 311



 
Thank you and look forward to your positive response to our request.
 
Best Regards
Alok & Ayushi Pandey

4814 Addison Drive
Cedar Falls, IA50613
[NOTICE: This message originated outside of the City Of Cedar Falls mail system  DO NOT CLICK
on links or open attachments unless you are sure the content is safe.]

312



From:                              Karen Howard
Sent:                               Tuesday, February 26, 2019 2:39 PM
To:                                   'iAppan'; Mark Miller; Susan deBuhr; Daryl Kruse; Tom Blanford; Frank Darrah;

Rob Green; David A. Wieland
Cc:                                   sasireka iappan; Nalin Goonesekere; Iris Lehmann
Subject:                          RE: Opposing the plan of construction of town homes at Green Hill Village.
 
Thank you for your correspondence. We will include your email as part of the public record and will distribute
copies to the Planning & Zoning Commission and the City Council.
 
Kind Regards,
 
Karen Howard, AICP
Planning & Community Services Manager
City of Cedar Falls
220 Clay Street
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613
(319) 268‐5169
karen.howard@cedarfalls.com
 
 
 
From: iAppan [mailto:iappan@gmail.com] 
Sent: Tuesday, February 26, 2019 2:25 PM
To: Karen Howard; Mark Miller; Susan deBuhr; Daryl Kruse; Tom Blanford; Frank Darrah; Rob Green; David A.
Wieland
Cc: sasireka iappan; Nalin Goonesekere
Subject: Opposing the plan of construction of town homes at Green Hill Village.
 
Dear Karen Howard,
 
We came to know based on the letter that we received from our Greenhill Village community, there
is a plan for the construction of townhomes near water tower of green hill community, Cedar Falls.
 
As we are one of the early residents of this community since 2008, we see some negative
consequences. Huge traffic, parking and population increased over years after building additional
single family house to condos to apartments in the Green Hill area. There will be certainly a safety
issue arise when adding more and more houses esp. apartments and townhouses around or
surrounded by single family houses, due to the short term people live in these homes. We already
feel that our single family home is under pressure of losing property value due to the condos and
apartments in this area. Now more pressure will add up due to construction plan of townhomes.
 
As a long term resident of Green Hill Village, we strongly oppose the plan of building up of
townhomes near water tower (southwest corner of Lloyd lane and Addison Drive) due to the
inconvenience for people, property, parking, traffic,  and more importantly safety.
 
Thank you for consideration.
 
Ayyappan Ponnaiyan
Sasireka Ayyappan

 

313



 
1416 Austin Way,
Cedar Falls, IA
3195539600
 
 
 
[NOTICE: This message originated outside of the City Of Cedar Falls mail system  DO NOT CLICK
on links or open attachments unless you are sure the content is safe.]

314



From:                              Karen Howard
Sent:                               Monday, February 25, 2019 7:55 PM
To:                                   'Dan Tesfa'
Cc:                                   Mark Miller; Susan deBuhr; Daryl Kruse; Tom Blanford; Frank Darrah; Rob Green;

David A. Wieland
Subject:                          RE: Objection to Greenhill Village High Density Zoning
 
Thank you, Mr. Tesfa, for your correspondence.  It will be filed as part of the public record and copies will be
provided to the Planning & Zoning Commission and City Council.  
 
Kind Regards,
 
Karen Howard, AICP
Planning & Community Services Manager
City of Cedar Falls
220 Clay Street
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613
(319) 268‐5169
karen.howard@cedarfalls.com
 
 
From: Dan Tesfa [mailto:dantesfa@gmail.com] 
Sent: Sunday, February 24, 2019 3:35 PM
To: Karen Howard
Cc: Mark Miller; Susan deBuhr; Daryl Kruse; Tom Blanford; Frank Darrah; Rob Green; David A. Wieland
Subject: Objection to Greenhill Village High Density Zoning
 
Dear all,

My wife Elizabeth Kena and I, together with our 2 sons are residents of 1523 Andover Court.

Our house was one of the first few houses built in the Greenhill Village in 2004. We gained occupancy at the
beginning of 2005.

For an experienced world traveler who resided in 3 continents and 5 countries, including major world metropolis,
Cedar Falls is the smallest city, but one where I am delighted to have been living in for the past 20 years and raise
our family in the tranquility and serenity of this beautiful City.

Among the greatest assets that Cedar Falls exhibits are the efficiency of its City services, safety of residents,
delivery of utilities including high speed internet, proximity to work, shopping, and mainly the Cedar Falls nicety,
and many other positive attributes.   

What makes me write this note is to get your attention to a situation in the Greenhill Village neighborhood where
my above mentioned attributes of Cedar Falls are likely to be tainted in my mind and others with a seemingly
mysterious arrangement of a process to issue a permit to build 34 townhouse units without consulting the
residents that are directly or indirectly affected by this development.

Why I say mysterious arrangement is the fact that none of the supposedly sent mailings of the March 2018
Planning and Zoning committee’s meeting was received by any of our neighborhood residents. This very episode
impaired residents from raising legitimate concerns about the proposed development during the initial meeting
in 2018. But instead the committee decided to approve without weighing the adverse impact on us which
translates in reduction our home values, addition of traffic congestion, and increased safety concerns for our
children, and more to mention.

Back in my surveying days of our plot in 2004, and visits to the original builder, Regency Homes, I was informed

315



Back in my surveying days of our plot in 2004, and visits to the original builder, Regency Homes, I was informed
that our neighborhood was slated for single family housing, and never was a mention of high density living
arrangement.

I disagree firmly with this proposal of adding high density housing and remain a steadfast supporter of the
original zoning of single family housing I had the knowledge of.

Sincerely,

Dan Tesfa

[NOTICE: This message originated outside of the City Of Cedar Falls mail system  DO NOT CLICK
on links or open attachments unless you are sure the content is safe.]

316



From:                              Karen Howard
Sent:                               Tuesday, February 26, 2019 8:23 AM
To:                                   Emily Thilges
Cc:                                   Tom Blanford; Iris Lehmann
Subject:                          RE: Greenhill Village townhome project concerns
 
Follow Up Flag:              Follow up
Flag Status:                     Flagged
 
Ms. Thilges, thank you for your correspondence.  It will be filed as part of the public record and copies will be
provided to the Planning & Zoning Commission and City Council.
 
Please call me if you have any questions.
 
Kind Regards,
 
Karen Howard, AICP
Planning & Community Services Manager
City of Cedar Falls
220 Clay Street
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613
(319) 268‐5169
karen.howard@cedarfalls.com
 
 
 
From: Tom Blanford 
Sent: Monday, February 25, 2019 8:59 PM
To: Emily Thilges
Cc: Karen Howard
Subject: Re: Greenhill Village townhome project concerns
 
Good evening Ms. Thilges, 
 
Thank you for your message. I have asked Karen Howard to include your comments in the public
comments received on this project. 
 
Sincerely, 

Tom Blanford
Phone: 3192698151
Email: Tom.Blanford@gmail.com

On Feb 25, 2019, at 7:14 PM, Emily Thilges <emily.thilges@yahoo.com> wrote:

Dear City Council Members,

We are writing to express our concern about the plans for Greenhill Village
Townhomes II. Our neighborhood has been told that last spring, there was a
Planning & Zoning meeting to discuss and approve the master plan of Greenhill 317



Village to increase the density of housing from single family homes to medium
density housing to allow for rental townhomes to be built. Unfortunately, none of the
neighbors received any communication about this meeting, despite what the city’s
records may show. 

The neighborhood first became aware of this potential townhome development and
the change in density at the end of January 2019, when a limited number of property
owners (only some of those with bordering properties to the development) received
a letter about the Planning and Zoning meeting on Jan. 23. Because of the limited
number of property owners who received that communication, and the late date it
was received, most neighborhood residents were not aware of the meeting in time
and were unable to attend. 

Our concerns about this development include, but are not limited to the following:

• Number of units immediately bordering singlefamily homes with no “buffer”
• 4person units would be too dense for this area
• Townhomes proposed are to be rental units, not for purchase
• 3story buildings overlooking bordering onestory homes
• Unrealistic parking plans for townhome residents
• Safety and traffic concerns for existing neighborhood
• Undefined plans for garbage removal
• Existing drainage issues on Addison Drive & Athens Court 
• Safety issues of connecting Addison Drive to a through street
• Existing homes currently valued at $250,000+ will lose value dramatically due to
proximity to rental housing

Our request is as follows:

Please consider revisiting the zoning of the area in question, as well as the density
being allowed, as our neighborhood was never given the opportunity to weigh in on
this decision last spring. We would like this area to remain as singlefamily housing,
per the original “master plan” of Greenhill Village.

A number of Greenhill Village residents plan to attend the Planning & Zoning
Commission meeting again on Feb. 27, but we need your help. Please review the
plans, stop by our neighborhood for a visit, and see firsthand how this change in
population density would impact our neighborhood.

We love living in Cedar Falls and Greenhill Village, but this change will negatively
affect our lives and properties. Please help us ensure the desirability of our
neighborhood is not diminished by this needless change. 

Thank you,

Leo and Emily Thilges
4802 Addison Drive
 
[NOTICE: This message originated outside of the City Of Cedar Falls mail system  DO
NOT CLICK on links or open attachments unless you are sure the content is safe.] 318



From:                              Karen Howard
Sent:                               Tuesday, February 26, 2019 11:14 AM
To:                                   'kelli loers'
Cc:                                   Iris Lehmann
Subject:                          RE: Greenhill Village expansion
 
Thank you, Ms. Loers, for your correspondence. It will be filed as part of the public record and copies will be
provided to the Planning & Zoning Commission and City Council.  
 
Please call me if you have any questions.
 
Kind Regards,
 
Karen Howard, AICP
Planning & Community Services Manager
City of Cedar Falls
220 Clay Street
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613
(319) 268‐5169
karen.howard@cedarfalls.com
 
 
 
From: kelli loers [mailto:sheklo1712@gmail.com] 
Sent: Tuesday, February 26, 2019 10:55 AM
To: Karen Howard
Subject: Greenhill Village expansion
 
Hello Ms. Howard,
 
I am sending this communication to request you vote against the Greenhill Village townhome expansion
of Lloyd Lane and Addison Drive. The increased traffic 34 town house units will bring to the
neighborhood is a major roadway safety concern. The neighborhood is already not equipped with enough
access points to safely enter into/out of the neighborhood and the increased traffic this expansion would
bring is only going to further negatively impact this issue.
 
I urge you to consider opting for the previously planned for single family dwellings.
 
Kind Regards,
 
Kelli L Loers
1609 Algonquin Dr,
Cedar Falls, IA 50613 
[NOTICE: This message originated outside of the City Of Cedar Falls mail system  DO NOT CLICK
on links or open attachments unless you are sure the content is safe.]

319



From:                              Karen Howard
Sent:                               Monday, February 25, 2019 7:35 PM
To:                                   Iris Lehmann
Subject:                          FW: Concerns
 
Please save into the project file and make copies for the Commission.
 
Thanks,
Karen
 
From: Macabe Schmidt [mailto:macabes@hotmail.com] 
Sent: Saturday, February 23, 2019 11:01 PM
To: Mark Miller; Susan deBuhr; Daryl Kruse; Tom Blanford; Frank Darrah; Rob Green; David A. Wieland; Karen
Howard
Subject: Concerns
 
Council members and City Planner
 
I once again write to express my concern with OVER density of MY neighborhood in Greenhill Village. 
We bought our current house and moved in almost 2 yrs ago with the anticipation of a quiet
neighborhood with obvious future development of more single family homes.  As of right now, our
traffic is minimal with Addison Rd not being a through street.  We knew that this would one day be
finished and would have slightly more traffic on it.  But if these town‐homes are built, the traffic could
very likely be 3 fold.  Traffic concerns are already a problem in the area with only 4 major outlets and of
those 4, 1 is controlled by a traffic signal.  I can not find another development in the city with as much
housing in such a small area.  There are already 26 town‐homes and 12 apartment complexes in the
immediate area.  I ask you this, even if there weren't already 38 multi‐family "homes" in your
neighborhood, would you want 12 more in YOUR backyard?  Why is it the developer does not put these
in their backyard? 
 
Besides the traffic concerns, this will only drive down our property values even more given the very
close proximity to my home and many others.  There are numerous other places around the city that do
not have town‐homes that these could be put.  
 
I also find it very odd that this area mentioned was supposedly "zoned" incorrectly for over 20 yrs by
the county assessor's mapping.  The way I understand it, if it was zoned "R‐1" and wanted to be
changed by the developer, property owners would need to be notified to bring forward any concerns. 
So coincidentally, it was "mislabeled" for 20 yrs, thus no notification would be needed because it wasn't
being rezoned.  To make matters worse, no one was able to show up to the initial meeting in March of
2018 since no one was notified of any potential change or meeting.  I heard the city admin state that
they aren't "required" to notify anyone but do so out of decency.  I spoke with nearly everyone on the
list that supposedly received notification and I, myself, did NOT receive anything in this regard.  In my
line of work, integrity is everything.  
 
Ask yourself this, would all of us on the list just throw away the initial letter of the proposed
meeting/change, to let this proposition get one more step closer to finalization, just to raise a stink
about it?  Common sense would tell you no.  
  320



I do plan to be at the next Z & P meeting on Wednesday.  
 
Sincerely
Macabe Schmidt
 
 
"The most practical kind of politics is the politics of decency."  ‐Theodore Roosevelt
[NOTICE: This message originated outside of the City Of Cedar Falls mail system  DO NOT CLICK
on links or open attachments unless you are sure the content is safe.]

321



From:                              Karen Howard
Sent:                               Wednesday, February 27, 2019 11:19 PM
To:                                   Iris Lehmann
Subject:                          Fwd: Concern for new proposed townhomes at southwest corner of Greenhill

Village, Cedar falls
 
Another letter for the record. 
 
 

Sent from my iPhone

Begin forwarded message:

From: Raju Kadam <rajupkadam@gmail.com>
Date: February 27, 2019 at 9:50:18 PM CST
To: <Karen.howard@cedarfalls.com>, <daveshar@cfu.net>, <rob.green@cedarfalls.com>,
<wfd@cfu.net>, <tom.blanford@cedarfalls.com>, <KruseOnCouncil@aol.com>,
<susan.debuhr@cedarfalls.com>, <markm@cfu.net>
Cc: Pratibha Jadhav <jadhav.pratibha6@gmail.com>
Subject: Concern for new proposed townhomes at southwest corner of Greenhill
Village, Cedar falls

Greetings, 

This is regarding Cedar Falls Planning and Zoning commission recommendation
to the City Council on increasing allowable residential density at the southwest
corner of Lloyd Lane and Addison Drive (by the water tower).

Recently, we came to know that the recommendation was given to build townhomes
in this area rather than the “singlefamily homes” that were originally planned.

Our neighbor recently attended the Planning and Zoning commission meeting and
expressed their concern about this project. We were unable to attend the meeting,
but we have also same concerns and expressing through this email.

It was also informed that commission has sent notice about this approval in March
2018, but we have never received any such notification mails.

This proposed development will affect our property one way or another either by
reducing our home values or reducing nearby property values due to increased
traffic, parking in the neighborhood.

Our humble request to Planning & Zoning Commission is to reconsider the
recommendations / any approval by further reevaluating the Greenhill Village
neighborhood concerns.

 

Best Regards, 
322



Greenhill Village Neighbor

Raju Kadam & Pratibha Jadhav

4748 Loren Dr

Cedar Falls, IA50613

[NOTICE: This message originated outside of the City Of Cedar Falls mail system  DO
NOT CLICK on links or open attachments unless you are sure the content is safe.]

323



From:                              Karen Howard
Sent:                               Tuesday, February 26, 2019 8:24 AM
To:                                   'Tara Mauerman'
Cc:                                   Iris Lehmann
Subject:                          RE: Lloyd Lane and Addison Drive Residential Density
 
Follow Up Flag:              Follow up
Flag Status:                     Flagged
 
Thank you, Ms. Mauerman, for your correspondence. It will be filed as part of the public record and copies will be
provided to the Planning & Zoning Commission and City Council.  
 
Please call me if you have any questions.
 
Kind Regards,
 
Karen Howard, AICP
Planning & Community Services Manager
City of Cedar Falls
220 Clay Street
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613
(319) 268‐5169
karen.howard@cedarfalls.com
 
 
 
From: Tara Mauerman [mailto:taramauerman@gmail.com] 
Sent: Monday, February 25, 2019 9:07 PM
To: Karen Howard
Subject: Lloyd Lane and Addison Drive Residential Density
 
Dear Ms. Howard,
 
My husband and I live at 4701 Loren Dr., which is located in a loop in Greenhill Village. We are
dismayed to hear that, based on the Planning and Zoning Commission's recommendation, the City
Council has approved increasing the allowable residential density of the southwest corner of Lloyd Lane
and Addison Drive. Our single family home is located very near that lot.
 
We urge you to please advise against the increasing of the residential density in that lot. The new
townhouses that have been built (and are still being built) down the new extended section of Loren Dr.
lead us ask you for this for three reasons:

Those new townhouses look very nice, but they have already led to far more traffic along
Ashworth Dr. The small roads just aren't built for a large amount of traffic.
In addition, we notice a lot of cars parked on the street in front of these townhouses as if there are
multiple people (not only one family) living in some of the townhouses. We do not want our
wonderful neighborhood to become a new upwelling of rentals (as often happens with
townhouses). Families that want to live, work, and stay in Greenhill Village are far more likely to
purchase single family houses that they can take care of on their own and be proud of.
Finally, townhouses are often governed by a homeowner's clause that keeps the owners/tenants324



from altering the yards in any way (as they are tended by the association). Unique yards and
gardens full of flowers and vegetables are vital for health of a community. Owners of single family
homes want to plant flowers, trees, and shrubs and take care of their yards. Associations want what
is easy and cheap to care for.

Please help us retain the longterm family community in our neighborhood and advise against increasing
the residential density of Lloyd Lane and Addison Drive. 
 
Thank you,

Tara and Lucas Plouff
4701 Loren Dr.
Cedar Falls, IA 50613
(319) 5750283
[NOTICE: This message originated outside of the City Of Cedar Falls mail system  DO NOT CLICK
on links or open attachments unless you are sure the content is safe.]

325



From:                              Karen Howard
Sent:                               Tuesday, February 26, 2019 8:21 AM
To:                                   Iris Lehmann
Subject:                          FW: Greenhill Village allowable residential density
 
Follow Up Flag:              Follow up
Flag Status:                     Flagged
 
I meant to copy you on this. 
 
From: Karen Howard 
Sent: Tuesday, February 26, 2019 8:21 AM
To: 'Teri Stuckey'
Subject: RE: Greenhill Village allowable residential density
 
Ms. Stuckey,
 
Thank you for your correspondence.  It will be filed as part of the public record and copies will be provided to the
Planning & Zoning Commission and City Council.  
 
If you have any questions, please give me a call.
 
Kind Regards,
 
Karen Howard, AICP
Planning & Community Services Manager
City of Cedar Falls
220 Clay Street
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613
(319) 268‐5169
karen.howard@cedarfalls.com
 
 
 
From: Teri Stuckey [mailto:tjs92@cfu.net] 
Sent: Tuesday, February 26, 2019 6:14 AM
To: tjs92
Subject: Greenhill Village allowable residential density
 
Cedar Falls Planning and Zoning Commission and City Council,
 
We moved to Cedar Falls from Cedar Rapids in 2010.  The same new homes being built in
Cedar Rapids were at least $55,000 more in Cedar Falls when were relocating.  We made the
investment knowing that Cedar Falls is a college town and that the homes should hold their
value.  
 
We purchased a home in Greenville Village for $239,000.  My parents retired and also moved
to Greenville Village in 2011.  They built a new home in Greenville Village for $255,000.  
 
At this time there was room for much development in the neighborhood.  We were told that out326



at Greenville Road there would be shops....strip mall type areas with living quarters on top of
those buildings.  That has turned into apartment buildings being out in front of our development.
 The rest of the space available was to be for single family homes.  That two has changed and
we have more condos being built.  Some of these condos are valued at $150,000 with single
car garages.  These have been built next to homes valuing $260,000 and up.  
 
We were excited when we had a developer start building single family homes again near those
apartment buildings and boasted of a beautified pond being in the new homes backyards.  We
felt like our neighborhood was back on track for the single family homes were were originally
told of.  Unfortunately Skogman built the new homes and did nothing with that pond.  It has
been overgrown with brush and trees.  Our HOA has raised our fees to try to make it look nice
for the neighborhood, but it is still overgrowing and looks bad.  The developer left it and said it
was the HOAs responsibility when they promised the new home buyers that was
something they were going to do.  
 
Now we are being told once again of more changes to our development.  What we were sold
into believing when we purchased our property that certain areas still to be developed
would be single family homes has now changed so that town homes can be built.
 Realizing that Cedar Falls wants to encourage growth and housing developments, it is
understandable.  However, not being notified of the changes back in 2018 so that our
development could have a voice in the matter is not acceptable.  

Cedar Falls is making changes for the developers and not holding them accountable for their
promises.  The pond is an example of this.  
 
The changes that Cedar Falls is allowing to occur within our neighborhood for
development is also hurting our investment in the homes that we have purchased.  
 
Unfortunately due to heath reasons, my parents had to sell their home.  Within 4 years time,
they took a huge loss on their home of $28,000.  They accepted the best offer that came
in over a 6 month time period of $232,000.  UNTHINKABLE when this newly built home
cost them $255,000.  
 
Our two story home that we live in has already been assessed at $10,000 less than the
mortgage we have.  New families are not as anxious to move to our neighborhood when
they see all the different development taking place.  The townhouses will bring in new
families, but not families that are interested in purchasing single family homes when
they are for sell.  
 
Please keep the plans for single housing in our development and don't allow the
developers to continue to piece together our development with apartments, town homes,
condos.  These decisions are decreasing our investment in our homes and making it
hard to maintain the integrity of our neighborhood.  
 
We also have concerns of runoff and continued parking and increased traffic issues.  Thank
you for taking this into consideration.  
 
Sincerely,
Ross and Teri Stuckey 
  327



 
[NOTICE: This message originated outside of the City Of Cedar Falls mail system  DO NOT
CLICK on links or open attachments unless you are sure the content is safe.]

328



329



330



331



332



333



334



335



336



337



338



339



340



341



342



343



344



345



346



347



348



349



350



351



352



353



354



355



356



357



358



359



360



361



362



363



364



365



366



367



368



369



370



371



372



373



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 

MEMORANDUM 

Administration Division 

  

  

 

 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 TO: Mayor Brown and City Council  

 FROM: Stephanie Houk Sheetz, AICP, Director of Community Development 

 DATE: February 26, 2019 

 SUBJECT: Community Development Block Grant Program 
  Grant Administration and Technical Services for Rehabilitation Program  
  Supplemental Agreement #1 
 
 
Cedar Falls is a recipient of Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) and HOME 
funds.  In June 2018, Council approved a contract with INRCOG for administrative and 
program responsibilities, after a consultant selection process earlier in the year. 
 
Included in their scope of services are monitoring contracts with service agencies as 
well as grant planning and reporting.  The agency monitoring includes quarterly reports, 
financial requests, and on-site compliance visits.  Planning work includes preparing the 
required FFY 2019 Annual Action Plan.  While drafts are completed, the budget and 
adoption steps must wait until HUD allocation amounts are released.  This is anticipated 
to be later this year than normal, due to the government shut down earlier this year.   
These aspects have necessitated additional work than what was anticipated by INRCOG, 
thereby increasing their general scope of work listed in Exhibit A of the original 
Professional Services Agreement. 
 
INRCOG has provided tremendous support to City staff with this grant administration and 
development of the 5-year Consolidated Plan. 
 
Staff recommends approving Supplemental Agreement #1 increasing the existing 
contracted services by $1,500 for agency monitoring and $1,500 for planning and 
reporting services.  This would be funded through the 20% Administration funds allowed 
through CDBG funds.  Attached is the proposed agreement. 
 
Please contact me with any questions.   Thank you. 
 

374



375



376



1 

 

   DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE AND BUSINESS OPERATIONS 

 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

220 CLAY STREET 

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 

PHONE 319-273-8600 

FAX 319-268-5126 
 

    M E M O R A N D U M
Legal Services Division

  

 

  

 

 

 

 TO: Mayor Brown, City Council 
    
        FROM:    Kevin Rogers, City Attorney  
 
 DATE: March 1, 2019 
 
 SUBJECT: Recodification 
 
 
As you know, staff has been working with MuniCode on recodification of the Cedar Falls 
Code of Ordinances.  We are ready to proceed with Council adoption of the new Code 
of Ordinances. 
 
According to the Iowa Code, when a Code of Ordinances to be adopted includes 
amendments to the previous Code of Ordinances, then a public hearing is required. 
 
Therefore, attached please find a proposed Resolution setting this matter for public 
hearing.  We would respectfully request that Council adopt this Resolution setting public 
hearing on recodification for March 18, 2019 during the regular Council meeting. 
 
Thank you.  
     
 

377



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Prepared by: Kevin Rogers, City Attorney, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, IA  50613 (319)273-8600 

 

 

RESOLUTION NO. ______ 

 

RESOLUTION SETTING DATE OF PUBLIC HEARING TO CONSIDER ADOPTION 

OF A CODE OF ORDINANCES FOR THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA. 

 

   WHEREAS, the City of Cedar Falls is proposing the adoption of a Code of Ordinances which 

contains amendments to existing ordinances; and  

 

 WHEREAS, the proposed Code of Ordinances contains references to nationally recognized 

standards as well as adoption of portions of the Iowa Code by reference; and 

 

            WHEREAS, Iowa Code Sections 380.8 and 380.10 require that a public hearing be held in such 

circumstances before the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls and that the City Clerk is to provide 

notice of such public hearing as prescribed in Iowa Code Section 362.3.  

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, that a hearing be held on the 18
th

 day of March, 2019, at 7:00 p.m., in the 

Council Chambers of the City Hall of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, Iowa, 

to consider adopting a Code of Ordinances for the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa.  A copy of the proposed 

Code of Ordinances is available at the Office of the Cedar Falls City Clerk.  The City Clerk is hereby 

directed to publish notice of said public hearing as required by law. 

 

ADOPTED this _____ day of _____________, 2019. 

 

   

  James P. Brown, Mayor 
   

ATTEST:   
   

   

Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk   

 

  

378



CERTIFICATE 

 

 

STATE OF IOWA   ) 

     ) SS: 

COUNTY OF BLACK HAWK: ) 

 

 

I, Jacqueline Danielsen, City Clerk of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, hereby certify that the above 

and foregoing is a true and correct typewritten copy of Resolution No. _______________ duly and 

legally adopted by the City Council of said City on the _____ day of ____________________, 2019. 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto signed my name and affixed the official seal of the 

City of Cedar Falls, Iowa this _____ day of ____________________, 2019. 

   

  

Jacqueline Danielsen 

City Clerk of Cedar Falls, Iowa 

  
 

379



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Planning & Community Services Division 

  

   

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 TO: Honorable Mayor James P. Brown and City Council  

 FROM: David Sturch, Planner III 

 DATE: February 27, 2019  

SUBJECT: Land Use Map Amendment and Rezoning Request  
 
REQUEST: 
 

Land Use Map Amendment from Greenways and Floodplain to Greenways 
and Floodplain and Planned Development (Case #LU19-001) 
and 
Rezone property from A-1, Agricultural to RP, Planned Residence District 
(Case #RZ19-001) 
 

PETITIONER: 
 

NewAldaya Lifescapes, Fehr Graham Engineering  

LOCATION: 
 

42.35 acre parcel at the southeast corner of W. 12th Street and Union Road  

 

 
The applicant has submitted a request to amend the future land use map and rezone a 42.35 
acre parcel at the southeast corner of W. 12th Street and Union Road. The future land use map 
amendment includes a change from Greenways & Floodplain to Greenways & Floodplain and 
Planned Development. This request also includes a zoning change from A-1, Agricultural to RP, 
Planned Residence. The land use and rezoning change will allow development of a NewAldaya 
Lifescapes campus that includes one and two unit dwellings and multi-unit dwellings for a 55 
and over clientele. Staff recommended approval of the land use and rezoning change. The 
Planning and Zoning Commission has considered the request and unanimously recommended 
approval.  
 
Staff requests that Council set a public hearing date for March 18, 2019 to formally consider the 
change in the future land use map and rezoning request. A full staff report and summary report 
of the Planning and Zoning Commission meetings will be provided to City Council prior the 
public hearing. 
 
 
     

380



 

 

 

 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING ON PROPOSED AMENDMENT TO 

THE FUTURE LAND USE MAP FROM GREENWAYS AND FLOODPLAIN TO 

GREENWAYS AND FLOODPLAIN AND PLANNED DEVELOPMENT 

AND CHANGES IN SECTION 29-107, DISTRICT BOUNDARIES 

OF DIVISION I, GENERALLY, OF ARTICLE III, DISTRICTS AND  

DISTRICT REGULATIONS, OF CHAPTER TWENTY-NINE (29), ZONING, 

OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA BY 

REMOVING CERTAIN REAL ESTATE FROM THE A-1 AGRICULTURAL DISTRICT 

AND PLACING SAID REAL ESTATE IN THE RP PLANNED RESIDENCE DISTRICT 

 

 

To Whom It May Concern: 

 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the City Planning and Zoning Commission has 

recommended to the City Council of Cedar Falls, Iowa, an amendment to the City Future Land 

Use Map from Greenways and Floodplain to Greenways and Floodplain and Planned 

Development and also amend Section 29-107, District Boundaries of Division I, Generally, of 

Article III, Districts and District Regulations, of Chapter Twenty-nine (29), Zoning, of the Code 

of Ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, and known as the Zoning Ordinance and that the 

City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, proposes to amend said Ordinance by removing 

the real estate from the A-1 Agricultural Zoning District, and placing the same in the RP, 

Planned Residence District as described below: 

 

A PARCEL IN LOT 2 OF ROBINSON'S MINOR PLAT OF PART OF THE NORTHWEST 

QUARTER OF SECTION 15, TOWNSHIP 89 NORTH, RANGE 14 WEST OF THE 5TH P.M., 

BLACK HAWK COUNTY, IOWA, AND MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS 

FOLLOWS: 

  

COMMENCING AT THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF SAID SECTION; 

 

THENCE NORTH 89°49'32" EAST (ASSUMED BEARING), 75.00 FEET ALONG THE 

NORTH LINE OF SAID SECTION TO THE NORTHERLY EXTENSION OF THE WEST 

LINE OF LOT 2 OF ROBINSON'S MINOR PLAT OF PART OF THE NORTHWEST 

QUARTER OF SAID SECTION; THENCE SOUTH 00°00'06" EAST, 33.00 FEET ALONG 

SAID WEST EXTENSION LINE TO THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF SAID LOT 2 AND 

THE POINT OF BEGINNING; THENCE NORTH 89°49'32" EAST, 795.34 FEET ALONG 

THE NORTH LINE OF SAID LOT 2 TO THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF LOT 1 IN SAID 

MINOR PLAT; THENCE SOUTH 00°09'12" EAST, 275.63 FEET; THENCE NORTH 

89°48'38" EAST, 223.37 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 00°10'46" EAST, 307.88 FEET; THENCE 

SOUTH 35°48'01" EAST, 410.89 FEET; THENCE NORTH 89°49'48" EAST, 813.81 FEET; 

THENCE SOUTH 00°02'24" EAST, 898.69 FEET, ALL ALONG THE EASTERLY LINE OF 

SAID LOT 2; THENCE NORTH 50°48'28" WEST, 1,057.40 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 

381



01°16'33" WEST, 145.20 FEET TO THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF THE SOUTHEAST 

QUARTER OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER OF SAID SECTION AS SHOWN ON SAID 

MINOR PLAT; THENCE SOUTH 89°47'16" WEST, 1,252.41 FEET ALONG THE SOUTH 

LINE OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER OF SAID 

SECTION AS SHOWN ON SAID MINOR PLAT TO THE WEST LINE OF SAID LOT 2; 

THENCE NORTH 00°00'06" WEST, 1,291.49 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING;      

 

CONTAINING 42.345 ACRES, SUBJECT TO EASEMENTS OF RECORD. 

 

There will be a public hearing on said proposed change on the 18
th

 day of March, 2019, at 7:00 

o’clock P.M., in the Council Chambers amending the Future Land Use Map and said Section are 

now on file in the office of the City Clerk in the City Hall in the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, and is 

available for reference and inspection by the public. Objections to said proposed change in said 

Ordinance and Land Use may be made in writing at any time prior to the public hearing as set 

forth herein and oral objections will be heard at said hearing. 

 

 

_________________________________ 

Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 

382



 

RESOLUTION NO. ______________ 

 

RESOLUTION FIXING DATE OF HEARING ON PROPOSED 

AMENDMENT TO THE FUTURE LAND USE MAP AND TO 

CHAPTER 29, ZONING, CODE OF ORDINANCES  

OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, AND DIRECTING  

PUBLICATION OF NOTICE OF SAID PUBLIC HEARING 

 

 

 WHEREAS, a proposal was submitted to the Cedar Falls Planning and Zoning 

Commission to amend the Future Land Use Map from Greenways and Floodplain to Greenways 

and Floodplain and Planned Development and to change the zoning from A-1 Agricultural to RP, 

Planned Residence District as described below, and 

 

 WHEREAS, said Commission has recommended approval of said change in the land use 

and zoning, and 

 

 WHEREAS, it is desired to submit the same for consideration to the City Council to have 

a public hearing on the same as provided by law; 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 

OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, that there shall be a public hearing on a proposed amendment to the 

Future Land Use Map from Greenways and Floodplain to Greenways and Floodplain and 

Planned Development and to amend Section 29-107, District Boundaries of Division I, 

Generally, of Article III Districts and District Regulations, of Chapter Twenty-nine (29), Zoning, 

of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, by removing and changing from the  

A-1 Agricultural Zoning District, and placed in the RP, Planned Residence Zoning District on 

the following described real estate: 

 

A PARCEL IN LOT 2 OF ROBINSON'S MINOR PLAT OF PART OF THE NORTHWEST 

QUARTER OF SECTION 15, TOWNSHIP 89 NORTH, RANGE 14 WEST OF THE 5TH P.M., 

BLACK HAWK COUNTY, IOWA, AND MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS 

FOLLOWS: 

  

COMMENCING AT THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF SAID SECTION; 

 

THENCE NORTH 89°49'32" EAST (ASSUMED BEARING), 75.00 FEET ALONG THE 

NORTH LINE OF SAID SECTION TO THE NORTHERLY EXTENSION OF THE WEST 

LINE OF LOT 2 OF ROBINSON'S MINOR PLAT OF PART OF THE NORTHWEST 

QUARTER OF SAID SECTION; THENCE SOUTH 00°00'06" EAST, 33.00 FEET ALONG 

SAID WEST EXTENSION LINE TO THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF SAID LOT 2 AND 

THE POINT OF BEGINNING; THENCE NORTH 89°49'32" EAST, 795.34 FEET ALONG 

THE NORTH LINE OF SAID LOT 2 TO THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF LOT 1 IN SAID 

MINOR PLAT; THENCE SOUTH 00°09'12" EAST, 275.63 FEET; THENCE NORTH 

89°48'38" EAST, 223.37 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 00°10'46" EAST, 307.88 FEET; THENCE 

383



SOUTH 35°48'01" EAST, 410.89 FEET; THENCE NORTH 89°49'48" EAST, 813.81 FEET; 

THENCE SOUTH 00°02'24" EAST, 898.69 FEET, ALL ALONG THE EASTERLY LINE OF 

SAID LOT 2; THENCE NORTH 50°48'28" WEST, 1,057.40 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 

01°16'33" WEST, 145.20 FEET TO THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF THE SOUTHEAST 

QUARTER OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER OF SAID SECTION AS SHOWN ON SAID 

MINOR PLAT; THENCE SOUTH 89°47'16" WEST, 1,252.41 FEET ALONG THE SOUTH 

LINE OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER OF SAID 

SECTION AS SHOWN ON SAID MINOR PLAT TO THE WEST LINE OF SAID LOT 2; 

THENCE NORTH 00°00'06" WEST, 1,291.49 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING;      

 

CONTAINING 42.345 ACRES, SUBJECT TO EASEMENTS OF RECORD. 

 

And that said public hearing shall be held on the 18
th

 day of March, 2019, at 7:00 o’clock P.M., 

in the Council Chambers in the City Hall of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa.  The City Clerk is 

hereby authorized and directed to publish notice of said hearing the Waterloo-Cedar Falls 

Courier, said notice to be published at least seven (7) days prior to the hearing date. 

 

 INTRODUCED AND ADOPTED this 4
th

 day of March, 2019. 

 

 

_________________________ 

                                                                            James P. Brown, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

        

Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 

384



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 

MEMORANDUM 
Planning & Community Services Division 

  

   

 

 

 
 

 

 

 TO: Honorable Mayor James P. Brown and City Council 

 FROM: Shane Graham, Planner II 

 DATE: February 27, 2019 

SUBJECT:      Proposed Amended and Restated Agreement for Private Development 
between the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa and Buckeye Corrugated, Inc. 

    
The Community Development Department would like to request that a public hearing be 
scheduled for March 18, 2019 to address the proposed Amended and Restated 
Agreement for Private Development between the City of Cedar Falls and Buckeye 
Corrugated, Inc. The project consists of a 175,000 sf. industrial warehouse and 
production facility, which is currently under construction at 2900 Capital Way. Additional 
information pertaining to the Amended and Restated Agreement for Private 
Development will be provided to City Council prior to the public hearing. 
 
If you have any questions, please contact the Community Development Department. 
 
xc:  Stephanie Houk Sheetz, Director of Community Development 
       Karen Howard, Planning and Community Services Manager 
       Kevin Rogers, City Attorney 
       Matt Highland, Division President 
        
 
 
 

385



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Prepared by: Kevin Rogers, City Attorney, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, IA 50613, (319) 273-8600 

 

 

RESOLUTION NO. ______ 

 

RESOLUTION SETTING DATE OF PUBLIC HEARING TO CONSIDER ENTERING 

INTO A PROPOSED AMENDED AND RESTATED AGREEMENT FOR PRIVATE 

DEVELOPMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, AND 

BUCKEYE CORRUGATED, INC. 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, has received a proposal from 

BUCKEYE CORRUGATED, INC., a Delaware corporation (the “Developer”), to enter into a proposed 

Amended and Restated Agreement for Private Development (the "Agreement") between the City of 

Cedar Falls, Iowa, and Buckeye Corrugated, Inc. on terms which include: 

 

 (1) Entering into an Amended and Restated Minimum Assessment Agreement whereby the 

minimum actual taxable value of the land and improvements to be constructed on the 

Development Property would be established at an amount not less than $10,056,000.00 for a 

period through December 31, 2030; and  

 

 WHEREAS, as required by law, a hearing is to be held by the City Council of the City of Cedar 

Falls, Iowa, to consider entering into the proposed Agreement for Private Development that includes a 

Partial Property Tax Exemption pursuant to the terms of said Agreement.  

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, that a hearing be held on the 18
th

 day of March, 2019, at 7:00 p.m., in the 

Council Chambers of the City Hall of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, Iowa, 

to consider entering into a proposed Amended and Restated Agreement for Private Development 

between the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, and Buckeye Corrugated, Inc. A copy of the proposed agreement 

is on file in the Office of the Cedar Falls City Clerk.  The City Clerk is hereby directed to publish said 

notice of said public hearing. 

 

386



ADOPTED this _____ day of _____________, 2019. 

 

   

  James P. Brown, Mayor 
   

ATTEST:   
   

   

Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk   

 

  

387



CERTIFICATE 

 

 

STATE OF IOWA   ) 

     ) SS: 

COUNTY OF BLACK HAWK: ) 

 

 

I, Jacqueline Danielsen, City Clerk of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, hereby certify that the above 

and foregoing is a true and correct typewritten copy of Resolution No. _______________ duly and 

legally adopted by the City Council of said City on the _____ day of ____________________, 2019. 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto signed my name and affixed the official seal of the 

City of Cedar Falls, Iowa this _____ day of ____________________, 2019. 

   

  

Jacqueline Danielsen 

City Clerk of Cedar Falls, Iowa 

 
 

388



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Prepared by: Kevin Rogers, City Attorney, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, IA 50613, (319) 273-8600 

 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING TO CONSIDER ENTERING INTO A 

PROPOSED AMENDED AND SUBSTITUTED AGREEMENT FOR PRIVATE 

DEVELOPMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, AND 

BUCKEYE CORRUGATED, INC. 

 

To Whom It May Concern: 

 

Notice is hereby given that on the 18
th 

 day of March, 2019, at 7:00 p.m. in the Council Chambers of 

the City Hall, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, Iowa, a Public Hearing will be held by the City Council of 

said City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, on a proposal from Buckeye Corrugated, Inc., a Delaware corporation 

(the “Developer”), to enter into a proposed Amended and Substituted Agreement for Private 

Development between the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, and Buckeye Corrugated, Inc., on terms which 

include:  

 

(1) Entering into an Amended and Restated Minimum Assessment Agreement whereby the 

minimum actual taxable value of the land and improvements to be constructed on the 

Development Property would be established at an amount not less than $10,056,000.00 for a 

period through December 31, 2030; and 

 

A copy of the proposed agreement is on file in the Office of the Cedar Falls City Clerk. 

 

Any interested party may appear at the time and place of hearing and be heard, or may file written 

objections with the City Clerk on or before the date and time of said hearing. 

 

 

This notice is given pursuant to Resolution No. ________________ by the City Council of the City of 

Cedar Falls, Iowa on the _____ day of ____________, 2019. 
 

 

   

  

Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 

 

 

389



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 

MEMORANDUM 
Planning & Community Services Division 

  

   

 

 

 
 

 

 

 TO: Honorable Mayor James P. Brown and City Council 

 FROM: Shane Graham, Planner II 

 DATE: February 27, 2019 

SUBJECT:      Proposed Agreement for Private Development between the City of 
Cedar Falls, Iowa and Martin Realty Company II, L.L.C. 

    
The Community Development Department would like to request that a public hearing be 
scheduled for March 18, 2019 to address the proposed Agreement for Private 
Development between the City of Cedar Falls and Martin Realty Company II, L.L.C. 
(Martin Brothers). The proposed project would consist of a 5,600 sf. 
corporate/professional office facility addition to be constructed at their existing office at 
6623 Chancellor Drive. Additional information pertaining to the Agreement for Private 
Development will be provided to City Council prior to the public hearing. 
 
If you have any questions, please contact the Community Development Department. 
 
xc:  Stephanie Houk Sheetz, Director of Community Development 
       Karen Howard, Planning and Community Services Manager 
       Kevin Rogers, City Attorney 
       Ethan Dewall, Martin Realty Company II, L.L.C. (via e-mail) 
        
 
 
 

390



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Prepared by: Shane Graham, Planner II, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, IA 50613, (319) 268-5160 

 

 

RESOLUTION NO. ______ 

 

RESOLUTION SETTING DATE OF PUBLIC HEARING TO CONSIDER ENTERING 

INTO A PROPOSED AGREEMENT FOR PRIVATE DEVELOPMENT BETWEEN 

THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, AND MARTIN REALTY COMPANY II, 

L.L.C. 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, has received a proposal from Martin 

Realty Company II, L.L.C., an Iowa limited liability company (the “Developer”), to enter into a 

proposed Agreement for Private Development (the "Agreement") between the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, 

and Martin Realty Company II, L.L.C. on terms which include: 

 

(1) Developer will construct certain Minimum Improvements (as defined in the Agreement) 

on certain real property located within the Cedar Falls Unified Highway 58 Corridor 

Urban Renewal Area as defined and legally described in the Agreement and consisting of 

a Corporate/Professional Office Facility Addition totaling at least 5,600 square feet of 

finished space, as outlined in the proposed Agreement; and 

(2) Developer will employ employees in the Minimum Improvements; and  

(3) Under the terms and following satisfaction of the conditions set forth in the Agreement, 

the City will make up to five (5) consecutive annual payments of Economic Development 

Grants to Developer equivalent to a declining percentage of the tax increments that would 

be generated by the construction of the Minimum Improvements under Iowa Code 

Section 403.19.  

 

 WHEREAS, a hearing is to be held by the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, to 

consider entering into the proposed Agreement for Private Development pursuant to the terms of said 

Agreement.  

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, that a hearing be held on the _____  day of ____, 2019, at _:__ p.m., in the 

Council Chambers of the City Hall of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, Iowa, 

to consider entering into a proposed Agreement for Private Development between the City of Cedar 

Falls, Iowa, and Martin Realty Company II, L.L.C..  A copy of the proposed agreement is on file in the 

Office of the Cedar Falls City Clerk.  The City Clerk is hereby directed to publish said notice of said 

public hearing. 

391



 

ADOPTED this _____ day of _____________, 2019. 

 

   

  James P. Brown, Mayor 
   

ATTEST:   
   

   

Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk   

 

  

392



CERTIFICATE 

 

 

STATE OF IOWA   ) 

     ) SS: 

COUNTY OF BLACK HAWK: ) 

 

 

I, Jacqueline Danielsen, City Clerk of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, hereby certify that the above 

and foregoing is a true and correct typewritten copy of Resolution No. _______________ duly and 

legally adopted by the City Council of said City on the _____ day of ____________________, 2019. 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto signed my name and affixed the official seal of the 

City of Cedar Falls, Iowa this _____ day of ____________________, 2019. 

   

  

Jacqueline Danielsen 

City Clerk of Cedar Falls, Iowa 

 

 

393



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Prepared by: Shane Graham, Planner II, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, IA 50613, (319) 243-2713 

 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING TO CONSIDER ENTERING INTO A 

PROPOSED AGREEMENT FOR PRIVATE DEVELOPMENT BETWEEN THE 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, AND MARTIN REALTY COMPANY II, L.L.C. 

 

To Whom It May Concern: 

 

Notice is hereby given that on the 18
th 

 day of March, 2019, at 7:00 p.m. in the Council Chambers of 

the City Hall, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, Iowa, a Public Hearing will be held by the City Council of 

said City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, on a proposal from Martin Realty Company II, L.L.C., an Iowa limited 

liability company (the “Developer”), to enter into a proposed Agreement for Private Development 

between the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, and Martin Realty Company II, L.L.C., on terms which include: 

 

(1) Developer will construct certain Minimum Improvements (as defined in the Agreement) 

on certain real property located within the Cedar Falls Unified Highway 58 Corridor Urban 

Renewal Area as defined and legally described in the Agreement and consisting of a 

Corporate/Professional Office Facility Addition totaling at least 5,600 square feet of finished 

space, as outlined in the proposed Agreement; and  

 

(2) Developer will employ employees in the Minimum Improvements; and 

 

(3) Under the terms and following satisfaction of the conditions set forth in the Agreement, 

the City will make up to five (5) consecutive annual payments of Economic Development 

Grants to Developer equivalent to a declining percentage of the tax increments that would be 

generated by the construction of the Minimum Improvements under Iowa Code Section 403.19. 

 

A copy of the proposed agreement is on file in the Office of the Cedar Falls City Clerk. 

 

Any interested party may appear at the time and place of hearing and be heard, or may file written 

objections with the City Clerk on or before the date and time of said hearing. 

 

This notice is given pursuant to Resolution No. ________________ by the City Council of the City of 

Cedar Falls, Iowa on the _____ day of ____________, 2019. 
 

 

   

  

Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 

 

 394


	Top
	1. Minutes - Regular Meeting of February 18, 2019.
	190218MINUTES.docx

	2. PH - Ridgeway Avenue Improvement Project
	1. Memo-Council Pubic Hearing.docx
	2. PH.docx
	3.30% Overview_6B.PDF

	3. Res for PH - Ridgeway Avenue Improvement Project
	4. Ordinance 2936, amending CHN Overlay Zoning District
	Ord 2936-CHN Zoning amendments.docx

	5. 3/04 Reappointments
	1-Reappts Memo.docx
	2-mark miller BOA application 1-29-19.pdf
	3-gerald sorensen BOA application 1-29-19.pdf

	6. 2/18/19 Committee of the Whole Minutes
	Comm of the Whole 02 18 19.doc

	7. Monthly Report - January 2019
	Monthly Report - January 2019.pdf

	8. Street Closure - Panther Caravan
	1-Street Closure Memo.doc
	2-Street Closure - Panther Caravan - Main.pdf

	9. Suds Tobacco Violation Settlement Agreement
	Suds-Tobacco Violation.pdf

	10. Liquor Licenses - 3/04
	Liquor Beer 2-28-19.doc

	11. Long Term Disability Insurance Amendment
	1. LTD Amendment Memo 2-1-19.doc
	2. Amendment-Rider - CEDAR FALLS CITY OF - IA - 2-1-19.pdf

	12. Subscription Renewal Agreement - IamResponding callback software
	IamResonding.com Software Contract.pdf

	13. Cameras in the College Hill Area Purchase
	CH cameras.pdf

	14. Waste Trac Lease Agreement
	190227143940_0001.pdf
	Exhibit A.pdf

	15. Hydro/Jet - Sewer Cleaning Apparatus Purchase
	190227143724_0001.pdf

	16. W. 1st Street Acquisition
	1.council memo on w 1st street ROW acquisitions 9-13-18.docx
	2.2395_001.pdf
	3.W1stPropAcq190218.pdf
	Parcel 44.pdf
	Parcel 66.pdf

	17. Rental to Single Family Owner Conversion Incentive Program - 821 Olive Street
	1. Memo to Council - 821 Olive Street.docx
	2. Lien Notice and Special Promissory Note for 821 Olive Street.docx
	3. Supplimental materials for 821 Olive Street.pdf

	18. Preliminary Plat - Greenhill Village Townhomes II
	1. CC Staff report PP for Greenhill Village Townhomes II.docx
	2. Grenhill Villiage Master Plan.pdf
	3. 5638-Prel Plat Sheet 1-REVISED 2-26-2019.pdf
	4. 5638-Prel Plat Sheet 2-REVISED 2-26-2019.pdf
	5. Deed of Dedication.pdf
	6. Certificate of Survey.pdf
	7. Combined Correspondence 2-28-19.pdf

	19. CDBG Supplemental Agreement-INRCOG, Supplemental Agreement #1
	1. Council memo 2-25-19.docx
	2. Supplemental Agreement #1.pdf

	20. Set PH - Recodification
	1-Recodification hearing cover memo.pdf
	2-Resolution Setting Public Hearing on Recodification.docx

	21. Set PH - Rezoning A1 to RP and Amendment to Land Use Map
	CC Memo Setting Public Hearing - 12th and Union rezoning and land use-Final.docx
	CC notice on 12th and union rezoning and land use 2-26-19.docx
	CC Resolution Setting Public Hearing rezoning and land use - 12th and Union.docx

	22. Set PH - Buckeye Amended DA
	1_Memo to Council Setting Date of Public Hearing 03-04-19.docx
	2_Buckeye Corrugated Resolution Setting Public Hearing.docx
	Notice of Public Hearing Buckeye Corrugated (informational).docx

	23. Set PH - Martin Realty PD
	1_Memo to Council Setting Date of Public Hearing 03-04-19.docx
	2_Martin Bros Resolution Setting Public Hearing.docx
	Notice of Public Hearing (informational).docx

	24. Allow Bills and Payroll of March 4, 2019.
	Bottom

